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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the 2024 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 were approximately HK$902,316,000 and approximately
HK$1,008,101,000, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.5%. The net profit of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 were approximately HK$18,884,000 and
approximately HK$22,168,000 respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.8%.

Details of the Group's results and prospects will be discussed under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
2024 annual report of the Group.

DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has resolved
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.67 cents
(year ended 31 December 2023: Nil) per ordinary share (totaling
to HK$13,360,000) to the Shareholders, which will be subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “2024 AGM") of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

BUSINESS DIVERSIFICATION

7

“Oodles Transformer”, “Cubicles and Smart Washroom Solution”,
“Luminous Shelves” and “Smart Emergency System” were launched in
the market. The Group's technology and technical solutions, “Oodles
Smart” was also officially launched in March 2024 and has successfully
expanded its geographical footprint to Japan and Singapore
recently. Potential product development from the realisation and
commercialisation of the Group’s technologies and technical solutions
will further add value to the Group. The Group will also endeavor to
refine its products and services and diversify its business in a steady
manner in the future so as to capitalise its growth opportunities,
increase its profitability and resilience of its business and reduce the
volatility of its business in the face of market fluctuations.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, bankers and professional parties for their
continuous support, as well as our management team and staff for
their hard work and contributions during the year.

Ng Chi Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 were approximately HK$902,316,000 and approximately
HK$1,008,101,000, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.5%.

The decrease in the revenue was mainly due to the deceleration of
the progress of some projects carried out by the Group as requested
by the customers for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 were approximately HK$120,939,000 and approximately
HK$129,565,000, respectively, and remained fairly stable; while the
gross profit margin of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 were approximately 13.4% and approximately 12.9%,
respectively, and remained fairly stable.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 were approximately HK$63,295,000 and
approximately HK$71,023,000, respectively, representing a decrease
of 10.9%.

The decrease in the administrative expenses was mainly due to the
effective cost control for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 were approximately HK$35,375,000 and
approximately HK$31,417,000, respectively, representing an increase
of approximately 12.6%.

The increase in finance costs was primarily due to the increase in
overall usage of the bank borrowings and other banking facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the abovementioned, the profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 were approximately
HK$18,884,000 and approximately HK$22,168,000, respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.8%.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Businesses

The Group is an established contractor based in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong" or “"HKSAR") of the People’s
Republic of China with over 21 years of operating history providing
fitting-out services and repair and maintenance services with
the qualifications as a registered electrical contractor, registered
subcontractor and registered minor works contractor in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services to residential and commercial properties in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 60 (31 December
2023: 51) fitting-out projects on hand, which included fitting-out
projects that have commenced but not yet completed and fitting-
out projects that have been awarded to the Group but not yet
commenced, with an aggregate total contract sum of approximately
HK$5,371 million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$4,129
million). Among these projects on hand, 37 projects were with
total contract sum of approximately HK$50 million or above. As at
31 December 2024, the aggregate total contract sum of these 37
projects amounted to approximately HK$4,429 million (31 December
2023: 30 projects: approximately HK$3,663 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CEYCRE ok

Prospects

In the post-pandemic era, a moderate growth in Hong Kong's
economy was noted in 2024 as a result of persistent headwind
hindering its economic recovery and growth. The Hong Kong
property market woes persist and will remain under pressure due
to cyclical factors such as interest rates, economic conditions, and
supply-demand cycles. As such, the Group anticipates that 2025 will
be a challenging year for winning new tenders in the existing fitting-
out industry in Hong Kong.

However, as supported by the 2024 Policy Address of Hong Kong,
the Government of HKSAR will develop land resources in a persistent
manner to satisfy the housing demand. It is believed that solid
demand for decoration and anticipated increase in demand for
renovation works for commercial buildings and shopping malls will
boost the fitting-out industry in Hong Kong continuously. Therefore,
the Group expects that the fitting-out industry in Hong Kong will
remain stable and healthy in the long term.

The Group will devote necessary resources to develop its core
business and explore any potential business opportunities if
appropriate. With a view to manage the risks and uncertainties
associated with the Hong Kong property market, the Group will
actively identify and address the prevailing challenges by increasing
strategic flexibility, effective cost control and cost optimization,
on a timely basis. In addition, benefiting from the Group’s proven
capabilities in technology and technical solutions, the Group has
been leveraging its power of GenAl technology and big data to
digitalise its traditional business successfully, allowing the Group to
drive productivity, enhance efficiency, facilitate customer services
and improve customers’ experience.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudent and optimistic about
the prospects of the Group's core business in the long term. The
Group will continue to adopt a very cautious approach while staying
vigilant to potential risks to ensure corporate sustainability in 2025.
The Group will continue to monitor its working capital management
closely. The Group will also attentively and carefully monitor the
latest development in its core business and potential product
development from the realisation and commercialisation of its
technologies and technical solutions; explore any potential business
opportunities and pursue opportunities for business diversification;
and adjust its business strategies from time to time if required.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings and lease liabilities, was approximately HK$498,380,000
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$444,341,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's banking facilities were
secured/guaranteed by:

(i) Personal guarantee provided by a Director, Mr. Ng Chi Chiu
(“Mr. Ng"),

(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company;

(i) Properties held by two Directors, Mr. Ng and Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe, and related companies;

(iv) Investments in insurance contracts of approximately
HK$59,389,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$49,812,000); and

(v) Pledged time deposits of approximately HK$7,187,000 (31
December 2023: approximately HK$3,127,000).

In addition, as at 31 December 2024, the Group provided corporate
guarantee to surety bonds.

The bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating rates
that are market dependent. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy while the Group pays vigilant attention to
and monitors interest rate risk continuously and cautiously.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 17 July 2020, the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and there has been no change in
the capital structure of the Group since then.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s issued capital was
HK$8,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
800,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

The principal liquidity and working capital requirements of the Group
primarily related to the Group’s operating expenses. The Group
expects to fund its working capital and other liquidity requirements
with a combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from the Group’s operations and bank borrowings
as well as other external equity and debt financings as and when
appropriate.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged time deposits of
approximately HK$7,187,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$3,127,000). Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged time deposits. Total capital is calculated as “total equity”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt. As at 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 66.3% (31 December 2023: approximately
66.5%). As at 31 December 2024, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 1.1 (31 December 2023: approximately 1.2).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the income, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, being the functional currency
of the Group, and hence, the Group does not have any material
foreign exchange risk exposure. With the insignificant portion of
monetary transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group being
denominated in foreign currencies, for the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
purpose. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider adopting hedging policy should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 233 (31
December 2023: 238) employees. The remuneration package the
Group offered to its employees includes salary, discretionary year-
end bonus and other cash subsidies. The Group provides a defined
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund (the "MPF") as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible employees.
The Group determines the salary of its employees mainly based on
their qualifications, experiences and performance. The Group carries
out regular review on the performance of employees to determine
any salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions.

The Group participates in an MPF scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
for its employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme participated by
the Group in Hong Kong is registered under and complies with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the laws of Hong Kong). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. The Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions pursuant to the MPF
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income and
capped at HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
are vested immediately.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme charged to the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2024 were approximately HK$3,406,000 (2023:
approximately HK$5,831,000). There was no contribution forfeited
by the Group on behalf of its employees who left the MPF Scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contribution, which may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions during the two
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. As at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023, there was no forfeited contribution available
to reduce the level of contributions in future years.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the employee benefit
expenses (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted
to approximately HK$100,595,000 (2023: approximately
HK$119,216,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERIRESH

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 September
2024, on 2 September 2024, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (the “Lessee”), entered into a lease agreement
(the “"Lease Agreement”) with an independent third party, for the
lease of the premises (the “Premises”) for a fixed term commenced
on 2 September 2024 and expiring on 31 August 2029 (both days
inclusive). The Premises would be used by the Lessee as its office
premises in Hong Kong for its business operations.

In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16
"Leases”, the entering into the Lease Agreement was recognised
by the Group as a right-of-use asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group for an amount of approximately
HK$21 million, which was calculated with reference to the present
value of the aggregated rental payments to be made under the Lease
Agreement.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, for the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other future plans for material investments
or capital assets for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, as at 31 December
2024, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there have been
no other material events occurring after the reporting period and up
to the date of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

To create a long term value for the interests of the Shareholders is
the Board’s main objective. As such, the Board is highly committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and striving to
maintain the management practices in a transparent and responsible
way. The Board reviews and improves the Group’s corporate
governance practices and business ethics on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company complied with the code provisions,
where applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
except for the deviation mentioned in the section headed “Chairman
and Chief Executive”.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All
the Directors confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2024.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategic planning, business development,
risk management, material acquisitions and disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management, such as the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for the Board's final approval before its publication,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. The Board has
also delegated to the relevant senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group with clear directions as to their powers in particular with
respect to the circumstances under which they should report back
to the Board before making certain key decisions on behalf of the
Company. The Board reviews the existing arrangements periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERESE

The Board also has established Board committees and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other
board committees, namely the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when
appropriate.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials, and the advice and services provided by the company
secretary (the "Company Secretary”) of the Company, and has the
liberty to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense if so reasonably required. The Directors will be continuously
provided by the updates on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises
five members, consisting of two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of
the Board and biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 2 to
4 of this annual report in the section headed “Corporate Information”
and on pages 87 to 90 of this annual report in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management”, respectively. An
updated list of the Directors with their respective roles and functions
is available on the Stock Exchange'’s website and the Company’s
website. Independent non-executive Directors are identified in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with key terms and conditions of their respective
appointment set out for a term of three years and subject to
termination as provided therein.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company with key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment set out for a term of two or three years
(as the case may be) and subject to termination as provided therein.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in the
same industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and experience
to the Company. The Company has established mechanisms
whereby independent non-executive Directors can express their
views in an open and candid manner and provide their independent
professional judgments on the assessment of the development,
performance and risk management of the Group. These include
dedicated meeting sessions with the Chairman and interaction with
management and other Board members outside the boardroom.
The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
abovementioned mechanisms on an annual basis to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board.

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

ERELRS

i%.a/\ﬁﬂ—ﬁ%ﬁﬁi BARERBARR

CEBRRBREAE  SARRRERKERE
%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@i o ARRE RS - EBILIE
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WA AR E 2 B R - R]IE R AR E R #
BB HEXAE - ZFERHBRETFNERM
R UREERENAEEENEMBEFTEN
ENEE BEFEHEFR EAEHNERK
B URRESSHRESBEUNERLER -
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE /BT 8EA
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting® Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
E=g ENEES REZES FMzES
= 1 = g3 83 RREAFAS®
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu @ REBEENW 6/6 N/AT 8 A 3/3 NATER 11
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe HERLt 5/5 N/ANE A N/ATNE N/ATNE A 111
Independent non-executive By FEHITES
Directors
Mr. Yip Kit Chau @ ERMEED 6/6 2/2 3/3 3/3 11
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA @8 ZELESAE - CPAG® 5/5 2/2 212 212 111
Dr.HoKaYan® ﬂ%ﬁﬁi@ m”n N/AT A N/ATER N/ATNE R N/ATER
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing @@ IR H IR e N/ATNE A N/ATNE N/ATNE A N/ATNE N/ANE
Mr. Ip Sze Ching @ %ﬂ;ﬁf’ti‘& 4/4 2/2 N/ATNE 2/2 111
1. Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. 1 ADAEEFEERRITEBH -
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee. 2. ?*Zi HE E
3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 3. HMZ = %Iﬁ °
4. Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 4. REZRBAER - N
5. Appointment with effect from 17 January 2024. 5 ZEE=F_NE-—ATCARER
6. Appointment with effect from 1 December 2024. 6. ZEE_ZE-_ME+=-A—H Ei'ﬁﬁl o
7. Resignation with effect from 17 January 2024. 7. BEA-FoNE—ATCAREM-
8. Resignation with effect from 1 December 2024. 8  HEE-FT-MET_A-BREEM- K
9. Including one meeting held by the chairman of the Board with the independent 9~ ~ BREEFEEIFEBUIRTEFRTH - RNEGR (K
non-executive Directors (without the presence of other executive Directors). fMITE T WL E) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the chairman of the Board
and the independent non-executive Directors met at least once
without the presence of other executive Directors and non-executive
Director.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times annually and
additional Board meetings are held when the Board considers
appropriate. Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally
agreed with the Directors in advance in order to facilitate them to
attend. Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to the Directors
in order to give them an opportunity to include any other matters in
the agenda for discussion in the meeting, and the chairman of the
Board approves the final agenda before each Board meeting. Notice
of regular Board meetings is served to all the Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

In respect of regular Board meetings or committee meetings and so
far as practicable in all other cases, meeting papers are sent to the
Directors or respective committee members in a timely manner and
at least 3 days before the intended date of the respective meetings
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Group and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Whenever a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interests which is considered by the Board as material, the matter
will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution.

Relevant senior management would attend regular Board meetings
and where necessary, other Board meetings and committee
meetings, to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

Relationship

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management — Directors”, none of the members of the
Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) between each other.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
The Company complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors confirming his or her independence from
the Company, and considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself
or herself for re-election by the Shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after appointment. Any further appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, who has served the Board for
more than nine years, shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board’s
composition, structure and size, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of the
Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
the Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, each newly
appointed Director should receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on appointment, and subsequently he or she
should receive any briefing and professional development necessary
to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
Ccompany’s operations and businesses and is fully aware of his or
her responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business
and governance policies. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
each of Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA, and Dr. Ho Ka Yan was provided
with proper induction, regular briefing on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA, and Dr. Ho Ka Yan had also obtained the
legal advice before their appointments from a firm of solicitors
under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 16 January 2024 and 25
November 2024 respectively and confirmed that they understood
their obligations as an independent non-executive Director.
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Directors’ Induction and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company arranged a
seminar provided by an independent third party for its Directors
as continuing professional trainings for corporate governance
and compliance purposes. Some Directors also participated in
other seminars according to their own preferences to develop and
refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the Group and
its business or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest
development or changes in the relevant regulations, the Listing Rules
and corporate governance practices.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars,
conferences, workshops, in-house briefings and reading materials
and updates to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Type of continuous professional development

SESEREER
Attending seminars,
conferences, workshops Reading materials and
Name of Director and in-house briefings updates
HEMNE 285
T {ELh R A SBER MEMBRREHEH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu REBEE 4 4
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe [ENSE g v/ v
Independent non-executive BAFHITES
Directors
Mr. Yip Kit Chau EARMTE v 4
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA ZERREIE - CPA v/ v/
(Appointment with effect (EFa T M4
from 17 January 2024) —A+tHBER
Dr. Ho Ka Yan B3N =n v/ v/
(Appointment with effect (ZEE - _UHF
from 1 December 2024) +ZA—HRBERR)
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing B SR N/A T8 A N/A 8 A
(Resignation with effect (B —Z=_—m&E
from 17 January 2024) —A+tHBER
Mr. Ip Sze Ching Bkt N/A A~ 38 N/A 3

(e = e
+ZA—BEAER)

(Resignation with effect
from 1 December 2024)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 December 2024, in respect of code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, having considered the nature and extent
of the Group's operations, and Mr. Ng Chi Chiu’s in-depth knowledge
and experience in the industry and familiarity with the operations
of the Group, that all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and relevant Board Committees, and
that there are three independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore
of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers and authorities between the Board and
the management of the Group and that it is in the best interest of
the Group to have Mr. Ng Chi Chiu taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Group are
not being separated pursuant to the requirement under the code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. The Company is committed to having a Board with
appropriate balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives.

The Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate will bring to the Board.

The Company values gender diversity. As at the date of this annual
report, the Board has one female executive Director and one female
independent non-executive Director out of five Directors. The Board
is committed to improving gender diversity as and when suitable
candidates are identified and shall continue to maintain at least
one female Director on the Board. The Company is of the view that
gender diversity in respect of the Board has been achieved.
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To further enhance gender diversity, the Board and the Nomination
Committee will stay vigilant in identifying a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board. The Group constantly implement
recruitment and promotion policies which encourage and attract
qualified incumbents to take up senior managerial and Board
roles. The Company will continue to embrace gender diversity
when making future Board appointments but no specific targets or
timelines to further enhance gender diversity have been set as it is of
the view that all aspects of diversity should be considered as a whole
in the selection of suitable candidates for appointment to the Board.

Traditionally, the Hong Kong fitting-out industry has been short of
females, however, the Group still managed to attract female talents
and maintained a workforce of which approximately 73.4% were
male and approximately 26.6% were female as at 31 December
2024. Although the senior management members are all male, the
Company does recognise the value of gender diversity to promote
a diverse and inclusive working environment and shall explore in
leveraging more channels to increase the female proportion in its
workforce in the future. While the Group welcomes increased female
representation at all levels, it does not consider appropriate to set
any specific gender target for its entire workforce. Being an equal
opportunity employer, the Group also considers other relevant
factors in making its decision on fitting the right person to the right
position.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board's
composition at least once annually taking into account the benefits
of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhering to the Board Diversity
Policy when making recommendation on any Board appointments.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the diversity
of the Board is sufficient.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back on its decisions or
recommendations to the Board on a timely basis, unless there are
any legal or regulatory restrictions imposed on it.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining
the relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the
Company's financial information; (c) reviewing the Company's
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems; and (d) reviewing the relationships with the employees
of the Group. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
adopted on 16 June 2020. The full version of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

As at the date of this annual report, pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Audit Committee is made up of three independent
non-executive Directors, including Mr. Yip Kit Chau (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Dr. Ho Ka Yan and Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA. Each
of Mr. Yip Kit Chau (chairman of the Audit Committee) and Mr. Law
Hung Wai, CPA, possesses the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

summary of work of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2024

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings to (a) discuss
and review the Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2023
with the auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and recommended the
same to the Board for approval; (b) review and consider the existing
terms of reference of the Audit Committee; and (c) discuss and
review the Group's results for the six months ended 30 June 2024
and recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience required) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become the Directors and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (c) implementing and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, making any recommendations
on it to the Board and monitoring its achievements annually; (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors, and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company; and (e) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and any proposed independent non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee was adopted on 16 June 2020. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee is
made up of three members including Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (executive
Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Law Hung
Wai, CPA (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Yip Kit Chau
(independent non-executive Director).

The Nomination Committee held three committee meetings for the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the
"Director Nomination Policy”) for the Nomination Committee
to identify and evaluate a suitable candidate for nomination to (i)
the Board for appointment; or (i) the Shareholders for election, as
Directors, at general meetings.

Where a vacancy arises under any circumstances, or where it is
considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new
Director with particular skills, the Nomination Committee shall adopt
the Director Nomination Policy, which sets out a number of factors in
making nomination, including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant
to the operations of the Group;

o Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;,

o Commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s),

o Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate
a standard of competence commensurate with the relevant
position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Upon the Nomination Committee’s recommendation, the Board will
review and if appropriate, approve the nomination of such Director
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Nomination Committee will also review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Summary of work of the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2024

The Nomination Committee held three committee meetings to
(a) recommend the nomination of an appointment of Mr. Law
Hung Wai, CPA, as an independent non-executive Director; (b)
review and consider the composition of the Board, the Director
Nomination Policy, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, the re-appointment of retiring Directors and the
existing terms of reference of the Nomination Committee; and (c)
recommend the nomination of an appointment of Dr. Ho Ka Yan as
an independent non-executive Director.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
the structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) considering
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and any of its subsidiaries; (d) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
of the Group and the compensation arrangements relating to 10ss or
termination of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; (e)
deciding the remunerations of the Directors with independence; (f)
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; (g) advising the Shareholders on
how to vote with respect to any service contracts of Directors that
require Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules;
(h) consulting the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive
officer of the Company about their proposals relating to the
remuneration of other executive Directors; (i) evaluating and making
recommendations on any share schemes that may be adopted by
the Company from time to time and ensuring its compliance with
the Listing Rules; (j) ensuring proper disclosure of the Director’s
remuneration in the annual report of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles and the Listing Rules; and (k)
reviewing its own performance, constitution and terms of reference
to ensure its effectiveness and making recommendations on any
necessary changes for the Board’s approval at least annually. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was adopted on
16 June 2020 and amended on 30 December 2022. The full version
of the amended terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange'’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee is
made up of three independent non-executive Directors including Mr.
Law Hung Wai, CPA (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Yip Kit Chau and Dr. Ho Ka Yan.
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The Remuneration Committee held three committee meetings for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

summary of work of the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2024

The Remuneration Committee held three committee meetings to
(a) review and approve the remuneration package of Mr. Law Hung
Wai, CPA as an independent non-executive Director; (b) review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the existing
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee; and () review
and approve the remuneration package of Dr. Ho Ka Yan as an
independent non-executive Director. Each of the remuneration
package of Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA and Dr. Ho Ka Yan was
determined by reference to his or her qualifications, experience and
responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing market conditions
and is subject to annual review.

During the year under review, there are no material matters relating
to the share option scheme of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) under the Listing Rules that were reviewed and/or
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Company did not
have any matters relating to any grants of options to the Directors
or the senior management of the Company as set out in rule 17.03F
and rules 17.06B(7) and (8) of the Listing Rules.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and
the Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Senior management’'s remuneration

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration paid to the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, with the assistance of other Board Committees, is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions,
and it accordingly reviews and monitors the training and continuing
professional development of Directors and the senior management,
and ensures its policies and practices in compliance with relevant
laws and regulatory requirements. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Board reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance. The Board is responsible for performing the
functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, received HK$1,380,000 for provision
of audit service. No non-audit services was provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2024.

There were no disagreements between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparation
of consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the Group's state of affairs as at 31 December 2024 and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2024. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the management has
provided the Board with monthly updates so as to give the Directors
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 103 to 109 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information
and are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to
identify, evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to
eliminate all risks of failure.

Policies and procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations. The policies
and procedures provide a reasonable assurance that material
misstatements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in the
course of arriving at the Group’s objectives are properly managed.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing system, which is
intended to enable employees and those who deal with the Group
to report serious concerns about possible improprieties to the Audit
Committee in confidence and anonymity. The Company has also
established systems to promote and support anti-corruption laws
and regulations. The employee handbook sets out principles and
code of conduct for acting responsibly in a professional manner in
daily operations, including issues related to business ethics, conflicts
of interest and bribery. Employees are also encouraged to express
their concerns on suspected case of corruption.

Same as last year, the Company conducted a review and
assessment of risk management and has engaged an independent
internal control consulting firm to perform an overall assessment on
the Group's internal control system including the areas of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
with the aims of, among other matters, improving the Group’s
corporate governance and ensuring compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. Based on its internal control review, the
independent internal control consulting firm recommended certain
internal control improvement measures to the Group and the Group
will adopt them for further enhancement purposes.
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The Board, with the assistance of other Board Committees, is
responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of risk management
and internal control for the Group and the Board had conducted
an annual review of its effectiveness for the year under review.
The Company engaged an independent internal control consulting
firm to conduct a review and perform an overall assessment of
the Group's internal control system. The review covered material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions for the year under review. The
findings from the review have been communicated to and addressed
by the Board. It has not been revealed to the Board that the Group
requires significant improvement in its risk management functions
and internal control procedures. Based on the above, the Board
considers that the nature and extent of management risks remains
the same since last annual review.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group's risk management
functions and internal control procedures including financial,
operational and compliance controls, as appropriate to the
Group, have been put in place and considers that the Group'’s risk
management functions and internal control procedures are both
effective and adequate. The Board and other Board Committees
review the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
annually.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group'’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company'’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
reports to the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to
the approval of the Board. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Company Secretary undertook
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biography is set out on page
90 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business, performance
and strategies. The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting. In respect
of each matter to be considered at the annual general meetings
and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-election of
Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of
the Board. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Board
Committees will be available at the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting to meet with the Shareholders and
answer their enquiries. The Company will also invite representatives
of the auditor to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains the
website of www.superland-group.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. Latest information of the Group
including annual and interim reports, announcements and other
corporate communications which will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website in a timely fashion
and despatched to the Shareholders (if requested).
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EEERESE

The 2024 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 25 June 2025.
The notice of the 2024 AGM, setting out details of each proposed
resolutions and other relevant information, will be published on
the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website and
despatched to the Shareholders (if requested) not less than 21 clear
days before to the date of the 2024 AGM.

Based on the above, the Board considers that the Company’s
communication with Shareholders is effective for the year ended 31
December 2024.

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no changes
in the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest version of
the amended constitutional documents is available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate
in the Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

The Dividend Policy would be in the best interests of the Group and
the Shareholders. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting the Shareholders' expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable Dividend Policy.
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The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
inter alia:

(@ the actual and expected financial performance and the
financial results;

(b)  the actual and available surplus and working capital,

(c) the expected working capital requirements and cash flow
required for the future expansion plans;

(d)  the debt to equity ratios and the debt level,

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the lenders;

(f)  the general economic conditions, business cycle and other
internal and external factors that may have an impact on the
business conditions or financial performance, the strategies
and the financial position of the Company;

(@ the future operations and earnings; and
(h)  any other conditions or factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any final or special dividends must be approved by the
Shareholders at a general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to time pay
to the Shareholders any interim dividends as appear to the Directors
to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The form, frequency and amount of dividend payment by the
Company are subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act
(as revised) of the Cayman Islands, Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules, the Articles, any other
applicable laws and regulations and any other financial covenants
imposed by financial institutions. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company's dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the
rights in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company in
respect of future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

32

The way in which the Shareholders can convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one vote
per share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business or resolution specified in
such requisition and to add resolutions to the meeting agenda
of such meeting; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting at only one location which will
be the principal meeting place, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong with the address at 18/F, Chevalier
Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM must be at least 14 clear days' notice in
writing.
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2. The procedures the Shareholders can use to
propose a person for election as a Director
Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director
at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected including that person’s biographical details, shall have
been lodged to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong with the address
at 18/F, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, at least seven days and that (if the
notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. The lodgement of notice should
also be in compliance with the other requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Articles.

3. The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Any Shareholder(s) who wish to raise his/their enquiries
concerning the Company to the Board may deliver his/their
written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at the address at 18/F, Chevalier
Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong, or at any address notified by the Company from time to
time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board and
the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, voting by poll is mandatory on all
resolutions put forward at general meetings, and the poll voting
results will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website after the relevant general meeting.
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BOARD STATEMENT

Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “Superland”,
“We" or "Us") is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for the year end 31 December 2024. The Group
puts the sustainable development of its business as the top priority
of its long-term development goals, and incorporate climate-related
issues and environmental, social and governance elements into its
long-term business strategic planning. As the most important party
of the Group, the Board has the sole responsibility to oversee,
manage and monitor the Group’s environmental, social and
governance issues and progress directly.

In response to climate change, the Group has set clear short-term
and long-term sustainable development vision and goals to achieve
ongoing emission reduction according to governmental requirements
of different countries and regions progressively. Relevant emission
reduction targets and corresponding strategies are established, and
sustainable development factors have been incorporated into the
Group's strategic planning, business model and other decision-
making processes. The Board regularly monitors and reviews the
effectiveness of management approach, including reviewing the
Group's environmental, social and governance performance and
adjusting corresponding action plans. Effective implementation of
environmental, social and governance policies relies on the
collaboration of different departments. Following the
recommendations given by the Stock Exchange, in order to
endeavour to achieve the objective of sustainable development, the
Group has established an inter-departmental Environmental, Social
and Governance Working Group to coordinate different departments
and enhance their mutual co-operation, for ensuring consistent work
performance which could be aligned with the stakeholders’
expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT (continued)

Our brand, Oodles, has also integrated smart technologies and mega
data to foster innovation, digitalisation and raise competitiveness of
the industry. We aim to develop sustainably by means of fusing
traditions and innovations.

The Group strives to ensure the establishment of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for work
safety, and supervision of the identification and assessment of
environmental, social and governance and climate-related risks and
opportunities, and to response to the challenges and impacts of
different times.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has achieved a number of
ESG awards, such as Junzi Corporation Award and 5+ Year Caring
Certificate, demonstrating our commitment in this area and that our
contribution to sustainable development has been recognised.

Looking ahead, the Board will continue reviewing and monitoring the
environmental, social and corporate governance performance of the
Group and provide material, reliable, consistent and comparable
environmental, social and corporate governance information to its
stakeholders for contributing to the creation of a better environment.
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BR HERELIHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is delighted to publish the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the "Report”) to summarise the Group’s
policies, measures and performance on the key environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues. The Group's ESG Working
Group members are responsible for communicating and
collaborating with external consultants (Acclime Consulting (Hong
Kong) Limited) to compile this Report.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the overall performance of the Group regarding
the environmental and social aspects from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (“2024", the "Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

The Report discloses related policies and initiatives for the core and
material businesses namely provision of (i) fitting-out services; and (ii)
repair and maintenance services with the qualifications as a
registered electrical contractor, registered subcontractor and
registered minor works contractor in Hong Kong.

The Report discloses key performance indicators ("KPIs") of the
corporate office ("office”) and the representative project(s)
("project(s)”) in Hong Kong, where the relevant disclosed
environmental data primarily include the emission data of the office.
The Group’s awareness on issues such as greenhouse gas (‘“GHG")
emissions and climate change is ever increasing, we focus on
improving our data collection system and expanding our disclosure
scope. Due to the relocation of the Group to a new office in 2024, the
office area covered in this report has decreased compared to 2023.
The scope of the Report covers all the Group’s operations in the
Reporting Period.

Reporting Basis and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and based on the four reporting principles —
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency:

o “Materiality” Principle:
The Group determines material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. Details are explained
in the section headed “Materiality Assessment”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Basis and Principles (continued)

o "Quantitative” Principle:
Information is presented with quantitative measure, whenever
feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

o “Balance” Principle:
The Report identifies the achievements and challenges faced
by the Group.

o “Consistency” Principle:
The Report uses consistent methodologies as the previous
reports for meaningful comparisons, descriptions are provided
if they are affected by any changes.

The Report has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
outlined in the ESG Guide.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined
control, management and operations information provided by the
subsidiaries in accordance with the Group'’s internal management
systems. A complete content index is appended to the last section
hereof for quick reference. The Report is prepared and published in
both Chinese and English at the Stock Exchange’'s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(https.//www.superland-group.com). In the event of contradiction or
inconsistency between the Chinese version and the English version,
the English version shall prevail.

Review and Approval

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) acknowledges
their responsibility for ensuring the integrity of the Report and to the
best of their knowledge, this Report addresses all relevant material
issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of the Company. The
Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved the Report. The
Report was reviewed and approved by the Board of the Company on
27 March 2025.

Feedback

The Group respects your view on the Report. Should you have any
opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to share with the Group at
info@superland-group.com.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board supports the Group’s commitment to fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibility and has the overall
responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.

ERRE
EFGARIEERNBITRRARLGRE
YREABAREORYE L ERE ARG RE
% o

Board of Directors

EFg

e Oversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets
e Manages and implements our core value on our business

o ERRE  HERELARE  BX - =5
kBR
o BERETEBZLER

Senior Management

SRERE

o Advise and supports the Board on ESG matters, strategies
and policies

¢ Qverall management and monitoring of ESG performance
and targets

o R - HEREARE - R RBEKRR
EEgRHER IR

o PHEERERERS HIREARRK
BiR

Environment, Social and Governance Working Group

BE - HERE

AIENE

e Composes of department heads, including Report project
department, human resources department, safety depart-
ment, finance department, marketing department, etc.

o Provides supports to ESG action plans and formulate
relevant internal ESG policies

e Discusses and provides feedbacks regarding ESG related
risks and opportunities within departments

o Meets at least once every half year, and reports to the
Board and top management regarding relevant KPIs and
target progress, and the ESG Working Group has carried
out 2 meetings during the Reporting Period

o HIFEPFIEEAMN - BETZE - ASEL
REED - MIBES - THEE

o BRI MEREIRTHFBIERMESE - A
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o BLESPIAARVELIRIE - & MEVAIRRIRIE KR
FIHBHETT af S SR BE

o BRAOBFFRITRGHE  ALEIETE
RE - AERERSREIEEERIAEENE
REMUEIEM BRER - MERE  HEakE
ALEMAEREHRBIT T2 REE

Department Heads and Other Employees

BMAEERAMER

¢ |Implement ESG policies and related initiatives

e Collecting environmental performance data on the
projects we build and manage

¢ Refining our data collection methodology and system

e Improving the communication of KPIs and targets to
better track and monitor the sustainability

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s ESG performance and
examines and approves the Group's annual ESG report. We strike for
the balance between the company growth, community interest and
environmental protection, and committed to achieving sustainability
both strategically and operationally.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued)

Board of Directors

The Board recognizes that corporate social responsibility is essential
for implementing decisions related to the improvement of company.
We aim at creating a lasting and positive impact company aligning
with four guiding principles, including (i) Trust and Integrity; (ii)
Conscientiousness; (iii) Shared Value Creation; and (iv) Togetherness.
Throughout the year, we strive to go beyond compliance and the
Company was not subjected to any significant fines or non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations in 2024.

Our Core Value

BR HEREIHRS

EREE &)

Exg

EXEeRACEH RN EERASEER
HEANAREEREE - RMRTEHLEE
RERIEFE RRTANETERANGE
BREOABERE : ()&FER: (BEXRER:
RvFEXRE - BA2FRNBEARZ&KE
B WARBR T _MFEWREREREM
ERER MR AERE R IFE S -

e Managing to balance good corporate governance
and accountability to stakeholders by
relevant business blueprint

BMEME

< BB ST E
RWEFERIFN LR

ER
Stakeholder
Communication
e Synchronising and
developing strong
partnerships to improve

SR ERE

>

Product
Sustainabiltiy
e Combining technology and
environmentally-considerate
design for a better

business and sustainability performance
performance performance ey L
B ENE Board of - BT RRRH A
o [E2P IS B AH i S E FHIKRIR
AEBRB - IR Directors
RASEHRAER =EEE
Prosperous Staff Wellbeing

Communities
e Providing both investment and
supports to our community in a
lasting and meaningful way

ERHE
s U ARBEHEN TR
HAIROAE R R IR E SR

e Creating exciting and long-term
opportunities for all employees, including
family values and innovative thinking
to drive excellence across the team

BETFE
s AREE TAIEMEI ALK
REte  BEREEEER
REAM S R AT B4 - LAE
BB HEEh = R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR MMEREIERS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT BEhE2H

Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid foundation for the Group’'s #MENEREAEBE A HEEE MKINNERE
sustainable development and success. The stakeholder engagement  Eiff - H N ELEAMAEBAIEFT AN ES
helps the Group to develop a business strategy that meets the needs Sk R HAZE M EFREE - A AR #5I6E H Kog{t
and expectations of stakeholders, enhances the ability to identify risk ~ EZ IR - AEBE BB T E T RA) S ERE EF
and strengthens important relationships. The Group communicates P &E&E® - WERSHHEZTRKLHAE -

with its stakeholders through various channels, as shown below, to

understand their needs and expectations.

Stakeholder Communication Channel Needs and Expectations
BHE BBERE FREEHE

Government and Regulatory e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG e Compliance with laws and regulations

Agency reports and other public information o AAA IR
BREREES#HE o Fif - PHITRE IR L= KREJR e Timely tax payment
HBEREMARER o RIFEMBIIA
e Supervision and inspection e Contribution to the local economy and
o EERRE employment

o REBHEHEERNMIE

Shareholder and Investor Company's annual general meetings e Return on investments

BREREREE and other general meetings of o KE[RITR
shareholders e Risk management
e NAIRRBFASREMPBPEREZ o RAREE
e Company website e Information disclosure and
o NAIHUL transparency
e Press releases/announcements o EMEERERE
o HER/AE e Protection on shareholders’ rights and
e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG fair treatment

reports and other public information e {RERRRAERS KA FHAF
o FIp - PHIWRE R HEREAR

FERIMARER
Employee e Training e Employees’ remuneration and benefits
(=1 o EFI o HrBitE T

e Meetings e Employees’ rights

s B e BIfEm

e Performance evaluation e Training and development

o RIAF(E o IEFIHERE

e Survey e Health and safety in the workplace

e ERHFE e BEREREZE

o Staff engagement and voluntary

activities

e ETZREREIRY
e Company's internal portal
o NEIANHA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholder
BHE

Customer
ZF

Supplier/Subcontractor/
Business Parther

HEs, 288,
EBaERY

Community and
Non-governmental
Organisations (NGOs)

HERFBRFAS
(FEBAFAR &)

Media
(=

Communication Channel

BERE

Fax, email and customer services
telephone hotline

BE BEBREFRBHRE:;
Meetings

EE

Feedback on products and services
Z=m R AR R 8B

Meetings
EE
Site visit
B AR 52
Survey
BRAT
Training

F ol

Corporate social responsibility
programmes and voluntary activities
e EREEIRE LGS
Sponsorship and Donation
&L

ESG reports

RIE g RERWRE

Social media platforms e.g. Facebook
page and LinkedIn page

HRIEET S - glFacebook BHE K
Linkedin & &

Enquiry mailbox
BB

BFESH®)

Needs and Expectations
FEoREAHAE

Product and service quality assurance
B E MRS

Health and safety

fe e 2

Information disclosure and
transparency

AR RERE

Business ethics

[BE3EX:

Fair procurement
N

Long-term cooperation
REAGE

Win-win cooperation
HE=EEHF|

Business ethics
EE3EL

Community environment improvement
REMEIRIR

Social responsibilities

DE NGB

Information transparency

A AFSEH

Information transparency
B ARBHEZHTE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

When preparing the ESG Report, the Group directly engaged with
various stakeholders as part of the materiality assessment process
to identify and prioritise the issues to be included in the ESG Report
which the Board believes would have significant impact on the
Group's business and its stakeholders.

Process

EEMMME

RRRARE - HERERRER  FREENK
FHEREN R AREEREN TN E R
AR NEEAREF S REARE 2 EBLE
RONEBERTENZBEL MATFF o

ik

Stage 1 Identification

REER1 5B

A selection of ESG issues that may reasonably be considered
important for the Group by itself and its stakeholders from
various sources, including listing rules requirement, industry
trends and internal policies. 28 issues were identified and
grouped into 4 categories: Environment, Employment and
Labour Practices, Operating Practices and Community.

HEERR (BELMRAFE 17282 K
MEBERER ) 3B I AR E R EFEHD %T%é@m
BBEREZMNIRE  HehEREE - BB
571 28z /

1B R4 I%ﬁ &

Stage 2 Prioritisation
PEEX2 BEFF

Conducted online surveys to rate the importance of each
issue from the perspective of a stakeholder and the Group
using a scale of 1to 5.

Developed the materiality matrix based on the scores of the
surveys, set the threshold for materiality (i.e. at a score of
average) and prioritised a list of sustainability issues.

ETRLEBERRE  WFHERAKRENAE
HEERENEREETHD  FoRES

2577 °

REBAFENDBEYSEMNER - REE
ZEEIE (BIFEE) @ XHAREERS
REPEFF ©

Stage 3 Validation

FEEX3 BRE

Management reviewed the materiality matrix and the
threshold for materiality. ESG issues, with a score of average
or above from the perspective of a stakeholder and the
Group, were prioritised as the most important sustainability
issues for the Group to address and report on.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE HMEREIESE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) BEEMFTML @)
Materiality Matrix BEEMEME

Based on the materiality matrix, the Board believes that the most EREZHEE BEeRAHAEENEE NG
pertinent sustainability issues which are material to both the Group HFHAHBEEEMNAFEZEZERENTS
and its stakeholders include the following: 18 -

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

Impact on the Stakeholder
HENHENEEN

Impact on the Group
HAEENEZ

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 ® 2024 5 5 ¥ 43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR MMEREIERS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) EEMFAMA @

Materiality Matrix (continued) BEEMEMEE)

In 2024, the identified material topics are as follows: ZENOF - BMFEANEHEZEEZENOT
Topics of High Importance 11 Employment practices

SEEEEE 1M BIEEE

12 Diversity and equal opportunities

12 BIZERTERE

13 Anti-discrimination

13 RIEER

14 Staff occupational health and safety
14 ETHRBEREREZ S

20 Customers’ privacy and confidentiality
20 EEILE R EEHRE

21 Customer satisfaction

21 BEWERE

26 Anti-corruption training for management and employees

26 FEEMETHREE

Topics of Medium Importance
FEEESEE

4 Waste management
4 BEEYER

5 Energy efficiency
5 BERME

8 Environmental regulations compliance

8 EBTIRIEAR

15 Staff development and training

15 B TR

16 Prohibition of child labour and forced labour
16 B LE1E FAZE T Fsa fl 45

17 Responsible supply chain management

17 BEANHEREE

19 Compliance with regulations on marketing, product and

service labelling
19 B ENREmNREIZEHENER
22 Intellectual property
22 S ERE
23 Safety of projects/services/products
23 BB/ R/ ERLE
24 Quality of projects/services/products
24 BB/ R/ EREX
25 Business ethics
25 HEEE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

Materiality Matrix (continued)

Topics of Lower Importance
RIEEZZE

O O N N OO0 W WNN -

N
oo O O

NN NN =
o0 0 N N o

BR HEREIHRS

EEMFTME @)
BEEMER(£)

Air emissions

KRS EIBER

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
BERE(RERE]) HEM

Effluents management

VEIKERR

Water efficiency

FA7K 3z

Use of raw materials and packaging materials
R R B YEHE A

Land use, pollution and restoration
THEEA - S5 RMIRE

Climate change

RIRE b

Environmental friendliness on products or service
purchased

PRI co AR TS Y IR IR R AF 1

Contributions to the society

Y )

Communication and connection with local community
HZ b 4 (8 ) 37 AN B B2
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Our Environment

The Group recognizes the construction industry may generate
significant environmental impacts and uses a huge amount of
resources. We aim to reduce the environmental pressures that are
put on the already stressed natural systems, as well as play our part
in reducing contributions to global warming. We must also adapt and
be resilient to climate change and the impacts of inevitable increases
in extreme weather events.

We, therefore, do our utmost to engage our stakeholders and the
communities together with our colleagues via many different
approaches, through education, training and green volunteer
services. Through holding classes on environment, participating
actively in local community events, conducting environmental-
related emergency drills, visiting advanced green technology,
installing new environmental devices, etc., green concept of our
colleagues are strengthened and know-how in regulations
compliance, energy savings both in workplace and at home, waste
reduction and separation, green shopping, enhancing awareness in
caring the community or public and helping in sustainable
development are acquired.

In addition, the Group advocates energy saving and carbon
reduction, and is committed to achieving sustainable operations.
Therefore, we set clear emission reduction targets, aiming to reduce
all our emissions (including air pollutants, GHG, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes, and sewage), energy consumption (including
electricity), consumption of resources (including water and paper) by
3% in terms of intensity, compared to corresponding intensities of
the Reporting Period in 2021, before 2026. Moreover, we are
investing more resources in recycling to support the development of
circular economy.

Policies

o Environmental Policy
Our Environmental Policy sets out our commitment to
controlling and maintaining a high standard of environmental
protection. We make sure that our projects are in compliance
with all relevant environmental regulations and other
environmental requirements stated in the contract, and will
seek rooms for improvement by introducing advanced
technology or new production method.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

our Environment (continued)
Policies (continued)

Waste Management Policy
Our Waste Management Policy sets out our commitment to
controlling both hazardous and non-hazardous waste
production. We provide clear guideline for our workers to
follow and ensure the compliance of the laws and regulations
concerning waste disposal.

GHG Management Policy

Our GHG Management Policy outlines our management
approaches to reducing carbon dioxides and other GHG
emissions in our daily operations. We will annually estimate
and review our carbon emission to monitor progress towards
our related target and set advanced targets if appropriate.

Energy Management Policy

Our Energy Management Policy outlines our dedication to
improving the performance on reducing electricity
consumption. We adopt an array of energy saving measures in
our offices and educate our employee with the eco-friendly
tips and ideas.

Climate Change Risk Management Policy

Our Climate Change Risk Management Policy sets out our
commitment to identifying and managing climate change-
related risks and impacts, and to formulate relevant climate
strategies based on business needs. The policy is updated
annually based on the actual circumstances.

Environmental Management Systems

Our environmental management system is stated in our
internal guideline. We make sure that the management system
is understood by each employee, relevant subcontractors and
their workers in order to continuously reducing the negative
impact on the site surrounding environment by controlling and
mitigation measure.

BR HEREIHRS

RIZEEME &)

BEMWERE(E)
BUR ()

BEEYEEKR
HAIEERDE B BRRET H RIS
BEMEENERY HMAR/TAREHES
HaEs DB RLERETERESR
W BRIE KRR ROEM

BERBERERER
HPMRERBEERRSML T HRMER
BRERLS AR RkEMREREBIR
MEIE TR - B B A E MmET ik
MME - LAEHEARR B R e E 0 E E
RETSLEREBR -

BENR BRI

AR EEBRR T HRMBNIES
HMAORBENER - RAERLZTHRR—K
FIENREIEIE - WA B TERRRERLIED o

RIRZCIRR R B & HEIBOR

B RIRZ(CAE R A R &R BURAT AR
PIB ) 3R B B B2 SR Ml 52 1 A B L i A 2
B UYREBEXBNFTEZHERBORIKE
§ BRNERERBAGFERN -
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RIEEHERR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our Environment (continued)

Policies (continued)

o Environmental Impact Management Policy
We are concerned about the impact of our business operations
on the environment and natural resources. The policy lists the
management strategies we have adopted to deal with the
impacts from different aspects, which are summarized as

RIZEEME &)

BNERE (&)

BUR (&)

e REFEEHHUR
Bt oRERBEEHRERRAER
ERNTE BRRENGRMARTRATE
HEBZEMRIMONEIRRE - BEMNT

follows:

Environmental Impact Management Policy

Comply with Relevant Environmental
Laws and Regulations

BFRARNRIROEROER

Work on Environmentally Friendly
Projects

NEHRBFRIFHNIER

Manage and Reduce Environmental
Burden
ERERRRIRSEAE

Promote Environmental Education
and Communication
HITRRHBERER

REXEERHR

Implement practices and measures to ensure compliance with
environmental laws and regulations
HTRREANRENEZERERGUETIEN KRBT

Promote business that helps the development of circular society
HERBDAIZEBREMSHNER

Promote other business that reduces environmental burden
HERAMBERESENER

Monitor and reduce electricity consumption and waste production in all
construction sites

RITERLISHERIRDE N EREREEMNES

Monitor and reduce the burden and impact of business activities on the
environment

ERWRLEBEDHRENAERTE

Evaluate environmental impacts in the supply chains and projects
FAHEERIBERRIELE

Promote efficient environmental management system
HITERENRRERZESR

Expand the disclosure of non-financial information
BWBARIEM T E R IR HE

REAR

Environmental Compliance

Our projects are subject to certain environmental requirements
pursuant to the laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not
limited to:

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311);

o Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400);

o Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132);

o Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354); and

o Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358).

During the Reporting Period, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
the Group was not aware of significant non-compliance issues in this

regard.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions

Environmental Impacts from Operations and Mitigation
Measures

We have held regular on-site meeting overseen by the project
environmental management team to check if there is significant
environmental impact, risk and non-compliance in order to manage
and control on-site environmental impacts. Besides, some of our
projects also follow the requirement of the Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM Plus) for New Buildings, which is a green
building initiative introduced by the Hong Kong Green Building
Council.

Air Emissions

Dust is generated from construction activities and material
transportation. We introduce mitigation measures in our construction
process. For example, demolition works areas are sprayed with
water or dust suppression chemicals, open burning is prohibited,
equipment and vehicles are regularly maintained. We conduct
regular dust concentration monitoring during the construction period
for required projects. Besides, the use of mobile vehicle is another
source of air emissions. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s air
pollutant emissions are as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions’

BR HEREIHRS

RIZEEME &)

PR
EEELNRESERERER

BRMZHEHTHEE  AEAREEEENKE
1 RERCAERREYE ERLER X
EETEMERER  AEERES THIRRR
& o ptoh - I D IR B TRE R AR IRFT (BEAM
Plus) TZEEMBRE  ERBEGEEERSHE
TRV B E(EE -

ZRBEH

BEZHLYHERSELER - RAIEZEE
RARETRERER - BOIME - £k TRREE
KRR - ZILBARRE - W EMEERE
FEE - F M T RS AR IR BETESN
ERREER - ULs - ERRBEREE RN
5 — R - RNBEME - AEERELENZER
EARMBERIT

ERTRYBER

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kilograms
REAEY (NOY T
Sulphur Oxides (SOy) kilograms
k¥ (SO0 Fr
Particle Matter (PM) kilograms
FEKLY) (PM) T

Compared with data in 2023, air pollutant emissions during the
Reporting Period were comparable.

! The data covers emissions from diesel consumption of the Group's vehicles. It is
estimated based on “How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

733.05 705.30
0.64 0.61
49.88 47.36

BT —FONEE  BEHRNZERSRY
BEEEEMEE -

! BBREA KB TEEREZ M PTEL TN - R
IRRB R AR MRCARERE LB REAME) T
(e — - REMRABIERERIESDEITME -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions

Climate change and global warming topics have made increasing
concerns in recent years. We strive to reduce carbon dioxides and
other GHG emissions in our daily operations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s GHG emissions are as follows:

RIZEEME &)

B ()

BERBEIER

EER  RIRBCM2RBEMEN TR -
BMBNEBEEERRL SR EEMAE
RENHER - RNBREHM AEEBEEREH
¢/ N

GHG Emissions? 2024

BEREBHER? —EB-mEF

Scope 1° tonnes CO,-equivalent 104.91 99.86
HHE—3 N =R =

Scope 2¢ tonnes CO,-equivalent 107.88 114.71
#HE— NS REE

Total tonnes CO,-equivalent 212.79 214.57
BEr AWM_FHREE

Intensity tonnes CO.-equivalent per square meter® 0.069 0.061
RE BEAKRAW_ELLBREES

Compared with the data in 2023, the total GHG emissions decreased
by about 1%. Total GHG emissions intensity increased by
approximately 14%, which was mainly due to a reduction in the
reporting area due to the relocation of the Group’s new office in
2024. The electricity consumption decreased during the Reporting
Period, mainly due to the shorter opening hours of the exhibition
halls. However, our primary source of GHG emissions for the Group
continues to be the indirect energy emissions arising from internal
purchased electricity consumption (Scope 2). These emissions
accounted for 51% of our total GHG emissions.

2 The figures covered the direct and indirect GHG emissions from the Group. The
calculation method of the corresponding GHG emission figures and the emission
factors used in the calculation are based on “How to Prepare an ESG Reports”
and its annex “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by
the Stock Exchange, “Sixth Assessment Report” issued by The Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC") and the “2023 Sustainability Report” published
by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited.

3 Scope 1: The direct emission from the business operations owned or controlled
by the Group, such as emissions from the use of vehicle.

4 Scope 2: The indirect energy emissions from the internal purchased electricity
consumption by the Group.

5 The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,082.52 and

3,534.03 square meters in 2024 and 2023 respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)
GHG Emissions (continued)
The following GHG management measures are implemented:

o Seek and explore operating measures that can efficiently
reduce GHG emissions;

o Adopt sustainable technologies to offset inevitable emissions;
and

o Encourage and educate employees to participate in
environmental protection activities and related eco-friendly
practices.

The Group will continue assessing, recording and disclosing our GHG
emissions annually, and hope to establish clear responsibilities
bearing system for fulfilling the emission policies and goals. We will
review goals and policies regularly and refine the data collection
system and develop reduction strategy, if appropriate, based on
projection of data in the coming years.

Waste and Wastewater Management

The Group acknowledges possible environmental impacts of waste
generated during its operations such as site clearance, excavation
works, and construction and fitting out works. The Group is
committed to reducing its impact on the environment by managing
its waste in an efficient and sustainable manner as stated in the
Waste Management Policy. Each member of the Group, as well as
subcontractors, should take reasonable steps to avoid the generation
of waste by well planning of the works. The following hierarchy of
options should be considered on waste management:

Reduce — Avoid generation of waste to reduce total waste
production;

o Re-use — Encourage reusing the construction materials and
tools before disposal;

. Recycle — Segregate waste and mixed construction waste for
effective recycling;

o Disposal — Avoid unorganized random disposal of waste and
dispose of waste to comply with statutory and regulatory
regulations; and

o Goals — Set suitable goals and targets in the coming financial
years to ensure continuous improvement of waste
management.

BR HEREIHRS
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BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling

We use resources according to needs and try our best to practice
the three principles of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle”. We are
committed to encouraging enterprises and employees to come up
with more innovative solutions for waste recycling in order to make
good use of resources. With the support of customers and project
teams along the value chain, we believe this collaborative approach
is moving towards a greener future, benefiting the industry and

society, and showing results.

On our office work, we pay much attention to the recycle and reuse
of Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). For instance,
we donate computers, printers, photocopiers, kettles or microwave
ovens to recyclers for processing. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue refining its waste reduction measures and disclose relevant
results where appropriate. The Group will seek continuous
improvement in waste management performance by setting
appropriate goals and objectives throughout the organisation.

During the Reporting Period, wastes generation from the Group'’s
offices are as follows:
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6 The figure covers the paper consumption in the Group's offices.
7 The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,082.52 and

3,534.03 square meters in 2024 and 2023 respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling (continued)

Since all the wastes are treated and settled by fixed monthly
payment by our subcontractors for the projects, we do not engage in
the waste management process of the project and do not obtain
related data for the project site. To the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant amount of
hazardous wastes generated in our projects and offices. During the
Reporting Period, there were 64 toner cartridges used in our record,
and were all collected by qualified suppliers for recycling. Since our
business nature does not consume much water, we are not aware of
any significant amount of wastewater generated. The water supply in
our office is also managed by the landlord, so We have no related
consumption data on freshwater. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue monitoring any significant hazardous waste and wastewater
generated from our business and review our current wastage and
wastewater management system coverage when appropriate.

Use of Resources

Energy Efficiency

As stated in our Energy Management Policy, we aim to improve
energy efficiency as a continuous improvement process. We strive to
conserve energy through the following measures in our office:

o Maintain a reasonable indoor temperature between 24-26
degree Celsius while turning on air-conditioners;

o Electrical appliances shall be turned off if not in use;

o Turn off lighting and air-conditioners in rooms that are not in
use or during non-office hours;

o Select energy-efficient electrical appliances with “Grade1”
energy label;

o Promote the use of energy-saving light sources instead of
using incandescent lightbulbs; and

° Computers are set to auto idle mode.
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BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Consumption and Intensity

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy consumption data
are as follows:

Energy Consumption®

RIZEEME &)
EREM B
EREERBE
R AR« A= R AL RS BRI T

AR FES

Direct Energy Consumption KWh in ‘000s 423 403
HEERER FTETRE

Diesel litres 39,566 37,624
4e0m nFH

Indirect Energy Consumption KWh in '000s 277 310
R RO 3 TETRE

Electricity KWh in "000s 277 310
EWi) TEF R

Total KWh in ‘000s 700 713
Ly FETRE

Intensity KWh in '000s per square meter® 0.23 0.20
BE BEHFRFTETRE®

Compared with the figures for 2023, total and indirect energy
consumption decreased, and total energy intensity increased by
approximately 13%, which was mainly due to the reduction in the
reporting area as a result of the relocation of the Group’s new office
in 2024. The electricity consumption of the Group decreased by
approximately 11% during the Reporting Period, mainly due to the
shorter opening hours of the exhibition halls.

Water Efficiency

Under the effect of global warming, we understand that water
resources are precious, and particularly concern about the water
scarcity pressures in different regions. Our Group's fresh water is
supplied by the Water Supplies Department and managed by the
landlord of our office. Therefore, there is no issue in sourcing water
resources and no related consumption data. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue refining measures and evaluating the related
results achieved.

8 The figures covered the direct and indirect energy consumption in the Group, the
calculation of GHG emissions is referenced from the “"How to Prepare an ESG
Reports”, and its annex “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
published by the Stock Exchange, and Oil Information database documentation
published by International Energy Agency.

? The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,082.52 and
3,534.03 square meters in 2024 and 2023 respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Material Consumption

In our office, one of the major materials consumed is paper. We aim
to maintain a paperless office unless it is necessary. To mitigate the
environmental impacts of material consumptions, we implement the
following practices in office:

. Set up recycling boxes near the photocopiers to collect single-
sided paper for reuse and both-sided used paper for recycling;

o Strictly control the use and order of materials, such as
concrete, steel, solvent, paint to avoid surplus waste;

. Use of double-sided photocopies and emails to reduce the
consumption of paper; and

o Encourage staff to reuse stationeries and materials such as
used envelopes, document folders and binding materials.

During the Reporting Period, the data of the Group’s paper
consumption and recycle amount in the offices are as follows:
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Compared with the data in 2023, our paper consumption decreased
during the Reporting Period. We will continue to seek opportunities
for waste reduction at source and paper recycling and maximise our
recycling rate.

Packaging Materials
Given the Group’s nature of business, our operations do not involve
any significant consumption of packaging materials.
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BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the biggest global challenges faced by the
society nowadays, and we must act now for protecting our climate
and our communities. In recent years, extreme weather, such as
strong winds, heavy rainfall, tides and floods, have become the focus
of news. Logistics and supply chains are particularly vulnerable.
Heavy rainfall, rising tides, and floods may cause serious damage to
assets such as buildings, warehouses, and goods in storage,
resulting in financial losses. Although such incidents are beyond
everyone's control, the Group believes that all stakeholders should
work together to address climate change.

As part of the group-level measures, our preliminary study of climate
forecast planning has revised the extreme weather section of the
group’s emergency response plan to identify relevant physical risks
and areas for improvement, for example, upgrading the current
facility management model to more effectively prepare for extreme
wind and flood events. In the coming years, our ESG Working Group
will further explore and conduct climate-related studies on business
operations.

In response to the “Paris Agreement”, the Hong Kong Government
issued the “"Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”, and formulated
various plans and actions, setting out the vision of “Zero-carbon
Emissions e Liveable City e Sustainable Development”. The
Government has determined to set medium-term goal as halving
Hong Kong's total carbon emissions from 2005 levels before 2035.
The Hong Kong Government has also announced that they will strive
to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050, and mainland China will strive
to achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. In the context of the global
transition to a low-carbon economy, the Group has also identified
potential risks associated with regulatory, technological, market and
reputational aspects specific to the location in which we operate. We
will integrate these identified risks into our business strategy,
integrate assessment and its results into the business risk
management framework, and continuously and regularly update and
identify, assess and manage various risks.

56 Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7]

RIZEEME &)

RIRE{
RIFECRESHEMEBENZIAEIRKBZ —
HRENENBAHEERRABNHNEZ R -
BT REZFOREMLE - FAFIVEZBNERER
178) < EFR - BImAR - HIANSRE - SERE -
B FHOK - ST BRI R B R - B R M (R
ERNFELRBE - BARR - B LA
IKEBRTREST IR EEY) - REURERRENED S
BEERBERENSIZURR - BRULBEEMHE
HTARNZEGEE  EXEERRZHNERE
R 15 1 R AR B ©

tEREEEmE RN — 80 RAYREFBRR
SMMEIR - AEFT T RENZESERTHE
A8 A B iR m R RO ERE) - T BRI A R
ERRERMEZNZNEE o PIIIRARTHR
MRS - AR B A BRSO A
TEIF R - MARREE - HAWERE HEkE
AT NERREBEELE - P RRETHEREK
TEBE

EEBNAOE(ERBE)  BRTEERRE
THER)  FTHEEFEMNTE T TTHREIT
e FEEREFHEXRINER EPE
BERAEERNTHER E_FT=AFmL
EENBRBIMEER _TTRFKFRFE - BE
B REEMERIFERN - ERTFA BERK
PR M E R AIFEERR AT ERE R
P EEHRERNBEESEREBEBRT » KN
BRER T HEEHTFENESE BT mH R
BESZHENECRR RMSLELDREA
R SR AR REET - A REEREAE
CEERERERES - FEILEREHNHES -
HE R EE SRR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

We formulated the “Climate Change Risk Management Policy”, to
outline that the Group understood climate-related risks and
opportunities relevant to our business operations. We are committed
to identifying and managing climate-related risks and impacts, and
formulating relevant climate strategies based on business needs. We
strive to work with stakeholders along the value chain and a practical
action plan includes:

o Establish and continue updating carbon emission inventory, as
a benchmark to set up carbon reduction strategies and
emission reduction targets;

° Provide professional construction services from the
perspective of environmental protection, and committed to
reducing its related pollutions;

o Set GHG reduction target, achieved by measures such as
controlling paper consumption, office temperature, vehicles
emissions, etc.;

o Ensure that all subcontractors abide by the “Climate Change
Risk Management Policy” during works, and implement
measures to ensure employees strictly follow the policy;,

o Whenever feasible, encourage employees, suppliers and
contractors to reduce their carbon footprints in daily
operations; and

o Ensure that at least 80% of the raw materials of wood products
used in our operations come from high-quality wood certified
by the Forest Stewardship Council.

The “Climate Change Risk Management Policy” sets a framework for
the Group's climate change strategy, which will be updated every
year based on the actual situation.
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BR HERELIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Apart from the potential additional costs arising from the
requirements or expectations of relevant laws and regulations, Hong
Kong currently does not have a carbon tax or carbon emission cap,
while in mainland China, carbon tax and the carbon emission limit
only cover the energy and industrial industries. Currently, there is no
direct impact due to GHG emissions. However, since the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority announced that the Hong Kong Government is
studying the possibility of Hong Kong as a regional carbon trading
centre, and the scope of carbon tax and carbon emission restrictions
in the mainland China will continue to expand, it may eventually
affect the upstream supply chain (such as raw material suppliers)
and indirectly affect other costs. The table below summarizes the
key transitional risks identified based on the inherent risk assessment
and the associated responses. The risk assessments use a short to
medium-term expected time scope.

Identified Major Transitional Risks
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In response to the “Paris Agreement”, e
the Hong Kong Government issued
the "Hong Kong's Climate Action e
Plan”, and formulated various plans e
and actions, setting out the vision of
"Zero-carbon Emissions e Liveable
City e Sustainable Development”. The e
Government has determined to set
medium-term goal as halving Hong
Kong's total carbon emissions from
2005 levels before 2035. The Hong
Kong Government has also
announced that they will strive to
achieve carbon neutrality by 2050
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Formulated the “Climate Change Risk
Management Policy”

B [ SRR 2 Aa R E e B IR R

Consider purchasing electric vehicles, and
gradually replace vehicles using fossil fuels
combustion (e.g. diesel)
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BE HEREIESE

RIZEEME &)
RIEB(2)

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Identified Major Transitional Risks

Responsive Measures
2 B B E BB E 1 EL ik

Construction With the commitment of the Hong Use new methods and technology in construction
j= Kong Government to adopting green T e LB £ A 37 3 VA AN £l
buildings in the public sector, we Strategically use new construction technology, to
need to prepare resources and fulfil customers’ expectation
expertise in response to changing BREHIRAINBERN - MEEEAE
customer expectations and market The market continues to invent new technologies,
demands, to respond to new trends utilize advanced construction technologies where
in the construction industry feasible, to communicate more effectively and
BEEBEBREEIRNEAHZR RS I make accurate decisions during construction,
KARREE HEAMTEZERER thereby reducing redo, waste and dangers
FEHERMEREREFHETFERR TS T ET BRI - Rl TTIER TR AL ER
EENMBOESE UBEHEERN BRI UREERETERREBRIELE
B MR - MR EM - B RE REERR
Some projects have passed the BEAM and/or
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(LEED) or green projects that meet equivalent
standards
BHBEE BBAEIRT LR AR IBRET
SRAREFNERSEENZECIEE
Insurance Regulatory disclosure requirements The Group will closely monitor the prudent
Rbg for climate change are getting stricter financial management related to climate change
Rz BEE HE 7R 2B R % and disclose relevant laws and regulations
Require financial management of development
climate change through stress tests TEEBZYERSEBAREZCHEETE
ZREBRBE NS RIRE(CET ERREBREHANER
M EIR Establish ESG Working Group to discuss and
identify various risks and promote various
measures
MIRIR (28 RER TIEA AR i & 7
FERRMNEDSIBEG
Head Office Regulatory disclosure requirements Closely monitor the regulatory disclosure
YRR for climate change are getting stricter requirements and formulate plans to regularly

RIEBENEERBEZRERES

carry out relevant risk assessments
FYEREEREERI G ETEIAEHET
R AR

Over the years, we have been expanding our business though %% - HfIEBTEEIHREER - NRER
different opportunities, accelerating transformation and making the (FAEEEEFLERBERE FEIMEHAESE
Group smarter and greener, safer for employees and users such as %% T 2 E A E 8B F 4 - Hlanid
video conferencing instead of in-person meetings to reduce carbon REEZERE B EE  URERSBERTEL
emissions from transportation. The transformation has made our — EYFRBENT & L BB (F H IR L E MR FEE A7)
operation and facilities more sustainable, which also demonstrates — 3& M - & F T K FIEERMNIB B(REN A o
our commitment to resources and environmental protection.
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BR HERELIHRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Our People

Employment

The Group understands that employees are one of the most
important factors for our success and they are our key assets to hold
a leading and reputable position in the industry. Our success hinges
on our employees’ provision of consistent, quality and reliable
services, and this holds true for both technical and support staff of
all levels. We consider human resources as the most important asset
and we put staff development on top of the list while fulfilling our
Company's sustainability journey. To meet the needs of our
sustainable growth and business development, we regularly assess
our colleague’s developmental needs to ensure everyone, including
the top management, is receiving support to achieve their top
potential and self-actualisation. We strive to provide work-life
balance with a variety of different activities for our employees whom
we regard as family.

Policies

Our Employee Handbook sets out the details on remuneration,
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest periods,
diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination, and formulates
corresponding policies on the above aspects to standardise various
human resources management measures and practices.

Employment Management

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group generally recruits our employees from the open market
and by referrals. We are committed to attracting and retaining
employees to provide service for us. Based on sustainable
benchmark, department heads evaluate human resources and
decide whether recruitment is needed for our business development.
The Group has formulated specific evaluation benchmark, for making
an objective and fair selection of each applicant, in order to select
talents who are suitable for the needs of the job, so as to avoid any
possible employment disputes. In order to attract and retain
employees, the Group emphasises the importance of development
and growth of employees. The promotion of employee is based on
their performance and capability. Performance appraisal is
conducted regularly to evaluate employees’ performance regarding
working attitude, technical skills, interpersonal skills, etc. We also
develop incentive programs to reward staff for excellent
performance and attitude. For details, please refer to the section
headed "Staff development and training”.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Employment Management (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal (continued)

The dismissal or voluntary termination of employee’s contracts shall
be enforced according to the employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. Relevant procedures of voluntary termination of
employment contract are clearly stated in the Employee Handbook.
If an employee has any serious misconduct, such as serious violation
of the content of the employment contract, occupational misconduct
or misbehaviour, frequent neglect of duty, etc., the Group will not
tolerate once it is verified, and the employee involved may face
immediate dismissal or disciplinary action. Moreover, the Group will
arrange exit interview for exit employees, hoping to provide an
opportunity to understand the employee’s past experience working
with the company. Information is thus collected for future reference
in functional and welfare benefit establishment and system
improvements.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to investing resources to create a safe and
harmonious, fair and equal working environment, ensuring that
employees are treated equally in every aspect of their jobs. We are
actively developing various skills of employees and granting different
forms of job opportunities to enable employees to accumulate
relevant work experience in the Group. We hold a respectful attitude
towards employees, customers and applicants and adopt an
employee diversity policy to create a work environment that is
capable and culturally diverse. Moreover, we are committed to
providing a discrimination-free working environment. We will never
tolerate any form of discrimination or harassment.

We will never tolerate any discrimination or harassment based on
gender, physical fitness, intelligence, race, age, sexual orientation,
nationality, religion, family status, etc. It applies to all aspects in
employment, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion,
transfer, job assignment, rewards and welfare benefits, training and
development, suspension, etc. We provide channels to promote
open and transparent multi-directional communications within the
Company. We have established a whistle-blowing policy for
employee to report any unethical behaviour and other misconduct in
workplace.
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BRE MEREIEE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HtEEE @

our People (continued) RMWETI (&)

Employment Management (continued) EREE (&)

Employment Profile 1EBHLR

Employment profile during the Reporting Period is as follow: WwMERBHNEBHEROT
Workforce Distribution BT oM
As at 31 December 2024 R-EBE-_mE+=-A=+—H8"
By Gender MR
Male St 171 180
Female pegi:s 62 58
By Age Group RER
Below 30 305R AT 33 52
30-50 30-50 142 146
Over 50 S0 £ 58 40
By Employment Type RERER
Permanent i 231 235
Part-time R 2 3
By Geographical Region 12 33
Hong Kong BE 233 238
Mainland China A B Al 0 0
Other E Aty 0 0
Total et 233 238

10 It includes the employees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors are 10 EEREALEEEE  HPBEENIATIARN-
not included.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Employment Management (continued)

Employment and Labour Compliance

The Group strictly abides by related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to:

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57);

. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282);

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485);
o Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Cap. 583);

. Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608),

J Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480y,

o Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487),

o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527); and

o Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case on employment practices.

Employee Retention

Remuneration, Welfare and Compensation

We establish labour contracts with each of our employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws. The remuneration
package which we offer to employees includes salary, discretionary
year-end bonuses, discretionary incentive bonuses, and other cash
subsidies. Moreover, to attract and retain talents, the Group offers
competitive remuneration package with a variety of welfare benefits,
including performance-based bonus, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes, medical insurance, overtime compensation, business
travel allowance for long business trips and night-shift allowance.

We determine the salary of our employees mainly based on their
qualifications, experiences and performance. The performance of
our employees is reviewed regularly for numerous purposes such as
salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions. We intend to maintain
our remuneration packages competitive to attract talented labour in
the construction industry and retain existing staff members for
consistent, quality and reliable services.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Rest Period and Working Hours

The Group provides reasonable working hours and rest periods to
employees. All employees are entitled to Public or Statutory Holidays
as announced in The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Gazette each year. In addition to those
Holidays, employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave,
compensation leave, paternity leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, compassionate leave, birthday leave, etc.

Employee activities

To cultivate self-confidence and enhance the sense of belonging and
team spirit of the staff, the Company organises recreational activities
which are beneficial to the body and mind and encourages active
participation of all employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group organised Chinese New Year Fai Chun making, team building
activities, Nine-Square Division competition, Mid-Autumn Festival
lantern making, Halloween and Christmas activities, etc.

Employee turnover rate during the Reporting Period is as follow:
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2024
Turnover Rate™ MEkEZEN —E-NF
By Gender &5l
Male B 3.02% 1.48%
Female pegis 2.42% 14.22%
By Age Group BEFER
Below 30 30T 5.30% 4.17%
30-50 30-50 7% 2.46% 4.74%
Over 50 505 A 2.44% 4.58%
By Geographical Region 1% th 15
Hong Kong BE 2.86% 4.59%
Mainland China FE RS 0.00% 0.00%
Other Ef 0.00% 0.00%
Overall ot 2.86% 4.59%

n Turnover rate = Average number of monthly departures during the Reporting
Period/Total number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period. The Group

had a total of 80 employees’ turnover during the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Health and Safety

Health and Safety policy is developed for safeguarding our
employees and is also one of the core values of the Company. We
uphold a strict practical standard and management system on health
and safety issues. Trainings and safety measures are promoted in all
levels of employees to ensure job site safety. The senior project
management staff shall have the responsibility on the
implementation of the safety measures and its operational
effectiveness.

Policies

We develop internal regulations and policies on Industrial Safety
Management, including chapters in Safety Control on Employees,
Safety Control on Workplace, Safety Risks and Responses, Corporate
Safety Plan, and Emergency Response Instructions.

1. Safety and Health Policy
We are committed to developing and achieving a safe working
environment. Safety and Health (S&H) at work is our first
priority over other matters. Our Safety and Health Policy sets
out our commitments and our safety performance goal with
the accident frequency rate not higher than 0.55 per 100,000
man-hours worked.

2. Employee Handbook
We have clearly stated the contingency measures that need to
be implemented in case of work accidents of different severity
in our Employee Handbook and require employees to strictly
abide by the rules of no smoking in the workplace to reduce
the risk of work safety hazards and maintain healthy and
comfortable work environment.

Occupational Health and Safety Measures

Owing to the wide variety of our Projects, each Project is required to
develop a Project-specific Safety Plan, overseen by the related
management team and the main contractors. The Corporate Safety
Plan outlines the approaches to coordinate, manage and control the
works in order to protect the safety, health and welfare of all
personnel and the public engaged on the Project or affected by the
operations. It is also established to ensure that all legislation and
contractual requirements are observed.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Our Progress

1.

66

Enhancing on-site inspections

In order to enhance the on-site inspections, we establish an
internal safety organisation specialising in managing the
occupational safety issues in Project sites. Our Safety
Supervisors and Officers are responsible for conducting regular
inspections on the Project Safety Plan and safety performance
of each Project site. Safety meetings are held regularly for
reporting any special findings and progresses on the safety
monitoring, and the process is monitored by the Project
Director and Senior Manager.

Emergency preparedness

Emergency Plans are prepared for adverse situation such as
extreme weather and fire event. We encourage the formation
of emergency response unit for projects by main contractors.
Emergency contacts shall be provided by the main contractors
to make sure an effective communication between the
emergency response unit and the workers. In addition, in order
to ensure the effectiveness of the Group's Fire Emergency
Procedures, we have carried out fire emergency drills during
the Reporting Period to simulate whether employees can make
timely and appropriate response in accordance with the fire
emergency procedures in the event of a fire in the Group's
offices. We have reviewed its effectiveness after the drill and
recorded the specific information in the “Corporate Fire Drill
Report”.

Safety training and education

We offered safety training to our employees and encouraged
them to participate in various activities relating to health and
safety in pursuit of enhancing our employees’ safety
awareness and knowledge in accident prevention and handling
process. We ensure that all our employees shall hold a valid
mandatory safety training identification (Green Card) and
receive site safety induction training prior the commencement
of works. Moreover, we also encourage job specific training for
workers engaged in jobs which require necessary safety
knowledge.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Our Progress (continued)

4.

Health assurance

Health protection and control are necessary for the prevention
of the occupational diseases and accidents. We display the
physical properties, chemical properties, hazards, safe
handling and storage instructions, and precautionary measures
for all hazardous substances through “Material Safety Data
Sheets”. Protection and mitigation measures are implemented
for common occupational problems related to dust, vigorous
vibration and noise. Moreover, first aid facilities and welfare
facilities are maintained in a hygienic condition and are
applicable under the local legislation.

Accident and incident investigation and reporting

We attach great importance to the safety and health of
frontline workers. After the occurrence of a site accident, a
detailed report shall be completed and submitted to the head
office no later than 2 working days. Senior management and
Safety Officers shall bear the responsibility to investigate all the
occurred accidents and provide corrective action plans and
recommendations as preventive measures to avoid
recurrence.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Safety Performance

Our Projects are subject to certain safety and health requirements
pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong, including but not limited to The
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59) and The
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509). During the
Reporting Period, there was no confirmed case of non-compliance
with the regulations. Among all the reported occupational accidents
to the Labour Department, two of them were serious. We will
continue our efforts to raise safety awareness among our
stakeholders and ensure that we learn from these events to prevent
any recurrence. As at the 31 December 2024, the data of the Group's
work-related injuries and fatalities of the past three reporting years
are listed as below:
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Number of Reportable Accidents™ AE2EREHEE 10 2 4
Number of Fatalities T AR 0 0 0
Fatalities Rate per 1,000 Employee and ST ZEE N T AMILT R

Workers's 0 0 0
Lost Days Due to Injuries’ ATEEXTIERE™ 287 1,067 243

Looking ahead, we strive to improve our safety management system.
The Group will continue updating and reviewing our Safety and
Health Policy and our safety targets to strengthen the safety
incentive of our frontline workers and enhance their awareness of
safety in work environment. Effective safety trainings and
communications will be upheld by holding more meetings and
discussions on the inspections and evaluation for improvements.

2 The data disclosure represents the number of serious occupational accidents
among all reported accidents.

B Fatality rate per 1,000 employees and workers = (Number of fatality/Daily average
employees and workers) x 1,000.

1 The data includes the total number of lost workdays due to occupational

accidents in the Group’s Hong Kong office and the projects.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Staff Development and Training

The Group believes that employees are our most important assets to
our prosperity. The Group has formulated staff development and
training policies, and consolidate the variety of trainings provided to
staff into the following categories:

o Induction training for new employees

The new induction training provided by the Group aims to help
new employees understand the company, including general
human resources policies, salary payment procedures, welfare
benefits, office safety regulations, etc. Moreover, all new
employees will receive annual training on anti-harassment,
anti-discrimination, anti-corruption and data security on the
first day of work commencement.

o Internal trainings
In order to meet the training and business needs of employees,
the Group has organised various internal training programs
related to their work. The programs aim to promote the
personal development of employees in different positions in
the Group, and to help enhance and develop the skills and
potentials of employees.

o External trainings
The Group actively encourages employees to take external
courses that meet job requirements and service needs. Related
programs include functional enhancement training courses,
outdoor team training camps, various seminars and
conferences, etc.

Besides the above work-related trainings, sense of belongings and
cohesion are also highly valued. We strive to maintain a good
working relationship with our employees, and we provide a peaceful
and harmonic working environment for them. During the Reporting
Period, no strike, labour dispute, discrimination and harassment case
occurred.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HtEE@ &)
our People (continued) RMWETI (&)
Staff Development and Training (continued) ETIREREIE)
Learning and Career Development g

In order to be consistent with our sustainable development and AR ARFPAIFERENEBTR  BFAETEE
business needs, we highly valued training and employee RFIIRETRE - AEBERS @& REE
development. The Group has provided the following types of training  #J8 TRt A N &=

to employees of all levels and categories:

e Induction training for new employees; e EB AR

e Technical training; o HigIEHI

e Occupational health and safety training; o BEREIRZR2EI

e Managerial and professional skills training; o  ERRIHERIIEI:

e Team building technigues and activities; and . BEERIOEIIRES &
e External training. o HNEREEF

During the Reporting Period, the Group had offered a total of 463.5 AR & BRI - AEBIRH T & 463 5@ 52 31|85
training hours. The details are as follows: oo FFIBAT

Percentage of Employee

Receiving Training ZHERERSL™

By Gender MR

Male B 78.36% 73.89%

Female pegis 95.16% 68.97%

By Employment Categories REEER

Manager or above IR A E 42.86% 27.27%

Supervisor or above FESKUA L 97.50% 54.17%

Operator/Support Level BRIEB R TIE 82.68% 80.45%

Overall 2 82.83% 72.69%
& The current data are based on the number of attendance of people. Percentage ™ HEAZIANRGET - ZHEE B DL = MR Z

of trained employee = Total number of employees received training during the BEBE HEHPNERES L -

Reporting Period/Total number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HEEm e
our People (continued) RMWEI (&)
Staff Development and Training (continued) EIREREINE)
Learning and Career Development (continued) BT TR (&)
2024 2023
Hours per Hours per
employee employee
—E_OE —EB-=fF
Average Training Hours' S 15 35 FI G By 16 RHE &S Y EE
By Gender =Bl
Male B 1.69 2.39
Female e 2.82 2.00
By Employment Categories RERER
Manager or above KB E 0.89 0.52
Supervisor or above FEHAE 2.38 177
Operator/Support Level BRIEE YR 1.99 2.54
Overall E2g: ] 1.99 2.29
Labour Standards % T 2A|
Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour ZIFET R#EH ST

As a conscience employer, the Group prohibits any form of
discrimination and forced labour and has formulated relevant
policies to avoid hiring child labour and prevent forced labour. We
have taken all practicable steps to prevent having illegal immigrants
from being on site and prevent illegal workers who are not lawfully
employable from taking employment on site. Our Human Resources
Officers inspect, take record and check the original identification
document of workers and check if workers are registered
construction workers under the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance. The Group firmly refuses to employ any child below the
legal age and will never tolerate any behaviour that exploits the
rights of children. We also require our subcontractors to hire
employees who are lawfully employable to work on sites. Moreover,
the Group will only establish an employment relationship under the
consent of both employers and employees, and will never allow any
coercion or violence to force employees to work. The Group will
regularly review relevant employment policies and regulations to
reduce the possibility of hiring child labour or forced labour. If child
labour or forced labour is found in the working area of the Group,
including our sites, we must take relevant measures to follow up
seriously.

1S Average training hours = Total training hours during the Reporting Period/Total
number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

ERRUET  AREZRFERP AR LR
HET WESIERBERRE U ILERE
TRt 3 AR bl 5B RIE R - RAIE HE—1]
DEAITHHE - AL IBAARER R
W XHIEIFETAMNAIRERRBZ AL) EH
BEXBRIE - RAANERENERAES
% RHERETAFOEBAXHNER I
BET AR DRBEEER T AR GO S
BIERTA - AEBEERIBEE B EMEREE
REFENAE YR IEESEMHEZERSE
BHWTH - HAIMERD BERRAAGER M
BRTENEE - U AEBREELEEETR
ETHEIRREE  MB T AEMEES
RAFERBRFIETETEE - AEESEHRR
HEERBEIER  URAERERLEERE
TohoatlSBR AR - MR ASEITEEE -
BREETHRABRRETHRESHOBER - R
1P95E 45 SREXAE B 4 e S R RR R AE o

“’ THZISH - REPBZIERE  REPRERL
2 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 2024 4 4 3 71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our People (continued)

Labour Standards (continued)

Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour (continued)

The Group strictly abides by, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance and the Immigration Ordinance (Cap. 115),
Convention Concerning Forced or Compulsory Labour. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case relating to child labour and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Our Supply Chain

Responsible Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to building lasting and constructive
relationships with partners in its supply chain. The Group’s supply
management policies and internal guidelines specify our dedication
to a fair, transparent and competitive procurement process which
requires all employees to observe the highest standards of business
integrity and to comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement

o Supplier
The suppliers of goods and services to the Group mainly
include (i) raw materials; (i) furniture; and (iii) tailor-made
accessories. The materials we purchased mainly include wood,
stone and metal. We will conduct supplier evaluation for new
suppliers when the customers nominate a particular supplier
for certain materials, and we also have an internal list of
approved suppliers for the selection of suppliers when
purchasing materials. The list is reviewed and updated annually
according to the performance of the material suppliers. At
least three suppliers’ quotations are obtained if no exclusive
supplier is suggested by the customer. When selecting
suppliers, we will fully consider the relevant environmental and
social risks, and with reference to criteria including, (i) quality
of materials provided; (i) punctuality in delivery; (iii) price; and
(iv) service quality; the Group will also prioritise suppliers that
provide environmentally friendly materials or services.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

Our Supply Chain (continued)

Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement (continued)

J Subcontractor
We may delegate part of our installation or other technical
works to our subcontractors; we are then responsible for the
site supervision, management of subcontractors and overall
project management. Regarding building construction works,
we engage subcontractors on a contract-by-contract basis and
depending on the types of work required, by trades of work in
the projects such that normally each subcontractor is only
responsible for one trade of work, can then decide if further
subcontracting is necessary. In order to effectively control and
monitor the environmental and social risks along our supply
chain, we clearly asked for strict compliance on safety and
environmental requirements on our contracts to ensure that
the Project is performed in accordance with the relevant
specifications with our customers. Our subcontractors need to
report regularly to our Group about the progress of works.

We approved and shortlisted the qualified subcontractors from
time to time with reference to factors such as (i) quotation; (i)
expertise and performance; (iii) service quality; (iv) defects
liability period; and (v) availability.

We continue monitoring the performance of suppliers and
subcontractors on our internal approved list regularly through project
inspection and compliance of requirement, and update our approved
list according to the evaluation result.

As at the 31 December 2024, we have a total of 456 suppliers and
subcontractors all from Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, all
our suppliers are managed in accordance with the above practices.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility

Projects and Services Quality

o Quality Policy
Our Quality Policy sets out our commitment to providing high
quality services to all our customers on time and within budget
to ensure continual improvements on the road to meeting all
reasonable customer needs and expectations.

o Quality management system and safety
To maintain consistent quality and safety of services for
customers, the Group has established a formal quality
management system, which is certified to be in compliance
with the requirements of ISO 9001:2015. During the quality
assurance process, we perform sampling, quality verification,
surveying, data analysis and review for improvement on
production stage such as designing and developing, resource
purchasing, product realisation and customer communication.

Our Quality Assurance Managers bear the responsibility to
monitor and supervise the Project Quality Plans for assigned
projects in light of the contract, and actively promote approved
quality concepts and procedure in order to ensure the quality
management system are correctly adopted and implemented
in our business operations. We will conduct management
review with all key management staff on the continuing
suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the quality policy and
objectives at least once every year.

Products Return and Recall Policy

As the Group is mainly engaged in decoration services, repair and
maintenance services, our business does not involve any product
production and manufacturing, so there is no relevant policy for
product return and recall.

Complaints Handling

We established customer communication channels including mail,
e-mail, fax and telephone meetings to receive service and product
enquiries. Also, we have complaints handling procedures in place to
provide guidelines for our employees on handling customer feedback
including complaints. During the Reporting Period, there was no
complaint received.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Intellectual Property, Marketing and Labelling

The Group's business does not involve research and development,
product packaging and labelling activities. Besides, the Group does
not rely heavily on marketing and advertising. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any significant impact relating to
intellectual property, advertising and labelling on its operations. We
will continue closely monitoring the business environment to identify
any significant risks in this area.

Customer Information Protection and Privacy

The Group strives to protect the privacy of its customers, business
partners and staff in the collection, processing and use of their
business or personal data. The Group has formulated personal data
privacy policy and confidentiality requirements for company
confidential information in the Employee Handbook, and ensures
company policies strictly follow Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486) of the Hong Kong SAR government.

Protection of confidential business information, trade secret and
customers’ privacy is of paramount importance to the Group's
interests and success. The Group requires all employees to maintain
the confidentiality of company information by signing the Non-
Disclosure Agreement. Our employees are required to keep
confidential on information consisting of but not necessarily limited
to (i) technical information; (ii) business development plans; and (i)
investor and customer lists. For all documents and information
belonging to the Group, every employee undertakes to return to the
Group upon termination of the employment with the Group.

Failure to observe the privacy rules may lead to summary dismissal
without compensation by the Company. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any significant non-compliance case in
this regard.

Business Ethics

The Group is committed to conducting its business with honesty and
zero tolerance on any unethical acts. We will continue disclosing
information openly and transparently in compliance with legal
requirements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

Business Ethics (continued)

Policies and Preventive Measures

The Group has formulated anti-corruption and bribery policy, which
clearly stated the definition of corruption and bribery and sets out
certain preventive and monitoring measures. Our commitments and
values are guided by the Employee Handbook and supplemented by
different policies. These policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure appropriate ethical business
practices and behaviour as well as compliance with corporate and
regulatory requirements.

o Employee Handbook
Our Employee Handbook sets out principles and code of
conduct for acting responsibly in a professional manner in daily
operations, including issues related to business ethics, conflicts
of interest, bribery, and confidentiality in the workplace.

o Conflict of Interest Procedure
The Conflict of Interest Procedure is established to prevent,
detect or deter inappropriate activity. On the commencement
of the employment, each employee is required to sign the
Company's statement of policy governing “Conflicts of
Interest”. We believe that it could safeguard the interests of the
Company and customers, and maintain a good professional
image and professional ethics.

o Anti-Fraud Procedure
Our Anti-Fraud Procedure includes establishment of
communication channels and reporting system to encourage
employees to express their concerns on suspected case of
corruption. Our management team will investigate the case
fairly and seek help from Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) and the police if appropriate.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in Hong Kong,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case or related corruption litigation case in this regard.
During the Reporting Period, the Group displayed anti-corruption
posters in the company for employees’ self-learning.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our Society

Community Investment

The Group is committed to active participation and support of
initiatives that benefit the communities. It has always been our
mission to contribute to our homeland to fostering harmonious
relationships with people and promote the development of our
society. Therefore, we invest in resources and hope to share our
success with our society. Besides, we donate WEEE products such
as computers, printers, photocopiers, kettles or microwave ovens to
charitable organisations or send them to recyclers for processing.

Our Voluntary Team

Our motto and spirit in volunteerism is — “Responsibility is Vital,
Achievement originates from Giving”. Our volunteer team
participates regularly in community service to serve and help those
who are in need. We provide incentives and facilitation measures to
encourage our employees and their family members, as well as
working partners, to participate in volunteering services, contributing
to the local community.

Our volunteer team has participated in volunteer activities for various
service recipients, including but not limited to the elderly, the poor,
the sick and the ex-mentally patients. During the Reporting Period,
we collaborated with the Hong Kong Decoration & Engineering
Association to teach a group of ex-mentally patients to paint murals.
During the programme, our volunteer team members encouraged
the participants to express themselves through art and to show their
artistic talents. Many participants were glad to transform their inner
feelings into colourful paintings during the workshop and shared
their unigue views on art creation with others.

Corporate Giving and Social Responsibilities

We are committed to bearing the social responsibilities and
contributing to society by our strengths and resources. During the
Reporting Period, we made both monetary and supplies donation to
non-profit organisations, such as to World Vision, Action Care, etc.
We also proposed community partnership projects and use our
business expertise to provide voluntary support to non-profit
organisations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our Society (continued)

Community Investment (continued)

Our Contribution

The Group cares about people in need in society. During the
Reporting Period, “Success Base Love Fund”, the charity team under
the Group collaborated with the Hong Kong Decoration & Engineering
Association to provide a series of two painting workshops for a local
charity organisation, the Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong, to
teach a group of ex-mental patients to decorate their current
dormitory in Yuen Long through mural painting. The Group also
collaborated with the Children’s Heart Foundation, supporting its
“Lucky Money Wishes 2024" program and provide unlimited love and
blessings to children with congenital heart disease. In addition, the
Group contributed to World Vision’s food security programmes
among the hungry in Somalia, South Sudan in East Africa. The Group
has contributed approximately HKD6,900 in various areas, including
community, education, public welfare, etc and we had a total of 33
volunteers who contributed 14 hours in participation of the
community services as mentioned above. We hope to set a good
example and take the lead in encouraging more cooperations to
offer help and support to those in need in society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Our Society (continued)
Awards and Recognitions

The Group's efforts are recognised by a number of awards during

the Reporting Period. The details are as follows:

Awards and Recognitions
RIFR AT

ESG Pledge — Certificate of Participation
[ESGHE |2 HmESE
Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellent Level
WEEEE 2 BARR
Hong Kong Green Organisation 2022-2025
B LR B 2022-2025
Happy Company 5+ Certificate
B0 1h 2 5+
Junzi Corporation Award
[BFEHE]
5+ Year Caring Certificate
SFE+ELHRBE
Good Employer Chamber 2024 Certificate of Participation
[T R EXZE 2024 2 HFE
World Outstanding Chinese — Young Entrepreneur Award
HRELEATSFEERE]
RMAA Contractor — Revitalisation Award
KRS EREE{TEFFE
RMAA Contractor — ESG Award
EHREEERERIRE e RERE]
Smart Living (Smart Home) Award — Bronze Award
BEAR(Bex/E) &[]
Corporate Innovation Index 2023-2024
ClI Constituent Companies — Ranked 24
A5 820232024 K 0 A R [ 24 4

BR HEREIHRS

HEEm®)

BEMNLE @)

RIERAA

RiEHRE - ARENBENESZ EEANEE
FHIEMT

Given by
BFH

The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
BEREREREHEE

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEHLZEE

Environmental Campaign Committee
RNEHEES

Promoting Happiness Index Foundation
BERRARLIESRES

The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
BEBEEKRE

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

E RS

Labour Department

2T

World Chinese Business Investment Foundation
HTREFREES

CIC Outstanding Contractor Award 2024
BIEFER S HE N AEYALE2024

CIC Outstanding Contractor Award 2024
BEER A T RERALE2024

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2024

2024 BB E M BRI AR

CUHK Business School

GPNCE L

The awards we achieved are recognitions of the Group's positive I &SN EE LW AEB AR HELE @
impacts on society and the industry on ESG development. Looking M€ RIT¥EMNEEFELMRA - BERK -

ahead, we will continue supporting environmental protection,

BPSEERFRIERE BRGEEE - &

achieve green management and collaborate with all our stakeholders BN EAIE HERRAUBERENLE -

for the development of a sustainable society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELIHRS

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX
BRACRE - ERERBEES)DARRT

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH —REERBREERER

Section/Statement
=8/ 8H

A: Environment

AR

Aspect A1: Emissions

BmEA1: By

General Disclosure Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

—MEE FEERIBERBYN  MKETHNEET BERES
BEEVNEESH
(@ BE: Rk
b)) BFHBRTAFERTENHEBEZERRBANER

KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data

B A IEIR AL PEm iR SR S AR B HE P B o

KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

B A IR IEAL.2 HE (BE) kegRHE (SHE2) REREYNE (UERTE)
N(mEmR) BmE (MASESEM - BIAREE) -

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BBEAERIEIR A3 FEEEEEEYESE (EAE) R (WER)ZE (e
ESBN  BERBAHE) °

KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BBERIEIR AL %EEEET%%@EKM@J ) R (WER) BmE (AE
ESB  BERBAE

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

BB A BB IEALD TR VB EE R RAENELBRMERN TR -

KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

BB RIEIRALS MR EERBEEREEYMN A - REMATET LR EE B

BERRERELBEMRIME SR -
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Our Environment —
Policies, Environmental
Compliance

HANERE —HER R
BaR

Air Emissions
2= RBERR
GHG Emissions

B RPN

Waste and Wastewater
Management

R N BEKE IR

Waste and Wastewater
Management

RERY) R REKEE

Our Environment,
Environmental Impacts
from Operations and
Mitigation Measures, Air
Emissions, GHG Emissions
ﬁﬁmh% = Eim
E%;&%m}
ﬁmm miﬁ%wm
Our Environment,
Environmental Impacts
from operations and
Mitigation Measures,
Waste and Wastewater
Management, Waste
Management by Recycling
HMHIRE  SEESE
WIRIR R B RIERIE -
FEEYREKER &
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Section/Statement

TEHER - BEH  —REERBRERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : EREMA

General Disclosure

—RIFE

KPI'A2.1

RABAR U IR A2
KPI A2.2

RRAEMIERA22
KPI'A2.3

PR A MIEIRA2.3

KPIA2.4

RAREUIEIRA24
KPIA2.5

FRERAE NIRRT A2.5

Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRUEAE IR (BIFELR K REMRM ) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENESMERE R KHEEER(WE - meloh) BFEE (U
FEFTERKFE) REE (WUSESEEN - FHERETE) -
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BFEKEREE (WMABESEN BERBH) -
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HMPTET LML RE R MR B R M AEDE L BRI
oz

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

i SREUE /KR E A B A RERE - A RFTET 89 K e
BE R AETEL B R -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

B MTAREMRNESE (CAETE) R (ER) FEES

(VAL

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3: RERAAER

General Disclosure

—RmE
KPI A3.1

BRE AR IR IR A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BIRBEITAHIRBERRAERENERZERNBUS -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

WRERGRHHRERRAERNEAZERCRNERA
AR ENTH -

;01

Our Environment —
Policies, Environmental
Compliance
BMRRE — R R
RER

Energy Consumption and
Intensity

BEREFRELEE
Water Efficiency

Rk fhes
Energy Efficiency

BEIR A a5

Water Efficiency

PR R

Not applicable to the
Group's business
THEANRAEEXD

Our Environment —
Policies

HFIHIRIE — BUR
Environmental Impacts
from operations and
Mitigation Measures,
Material Consumption
EEEENRETER
RRRRIE G - WIRLERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR MMEREIERS

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BRXACRE - ERERBEREDABRRS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)  Section/Statement

IRER - BH —REERBERERER ;01

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEAL : RIRE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-  Climate Change
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

—MHEE BRI REHEKERAIEGHETAEETYENE XRIZIEHE RixZ1
EEABE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Climate Change

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

RASE AR IBIZE AL HlEE R e e B ITAEERY ENEARERABSEE - IR
N EE1TE) o

B: Social
B g
Aspect B1: Employment
EmB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Our People
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RRIREE EBFMRRE  REREA  TENHE - B TS5 - BB T
Zit - RIERIAREMEEREN
(@ BE: R
(b)) BFHBRTABERATENMBEBEIRRBANER
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- Employment
or part-time), age group and geographical region. Management
RABEAE IE1R B1.1 IR EEAR (N2BSER)  FiRENEESH ERERER
EEBE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employee Retention
region.
BASRIEIE1EB1.2 ZIER - FRARRIMREDOESRKLLE - AT BE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEHER - BEH  —REERBRERER

Section/Statement

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #EHEZZE
General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—RRIREE FHEREZE2THERRRREESEABENTEN
(@ BE: R
(b)) BFHBETABEAFENMBERRBOANER -

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the reporting year.

B SR AR B 1R B2.1 BE=ZF (BRERFR)BFRAITHIAB L E -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

BASRAE B 1E B2.2 ATEEERIIERE -

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Bl A RUE IR B2.3 M PTIR MM B R RN 2 - UREERITRER % ©

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : #ERE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRIREE ERARAEEBITIEBENMHE RRAEMBUR - #Hl 5 I
EED o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g.. senior management, middle management).

BB 4B B 1R B3.1 RMRREERN (NaREEE HREEES) SA>NX
IMEEB DL °

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

BB 4E IE 1R B3.2 BRUFINEEERNED  BREETHRZIN TR -

;01

Health and Safety

Rz

Health and Safety

HERERT S
Health and Safety
(eI
Health and Safety

e

Staff Development and
Training
BT #RERIE

Staff Development and
Training
BT #REKIE

Staff Development and
Training
BT R RS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BR MMEREIERS

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(RE #HEREARAFEESIDNBRS (2

Section/Statement

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEHER - BEH  —REERBRERER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEBA : TR

;01

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

— MR BRAMIEE Toksa 4 TH) - 85 T8
(@ mBE: R
(b)) BFHBRTABERATENHEBEIRRBANER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards
avoid child and forced labour.

B SR A8 B 1R B4 FaR R RIS IE A e AR o B T ko8 HI&5 T o & T AR

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Labour Standards
discovered.

BASRAE B 1E BA.2 MR IN B R IB R ER A BB R EREA S5 o BT AR

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BEBS : ftEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the  Our Supply Chain
supply chain.

—RRIEE ERHEEENRE R SRR - bl ok gy

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Our Supply Chain

8 1 48 B 15 B5.1 R E S HEMEE - AN B At e 5

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number — Our Supply Chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BASRAA B 1R B5.2 M EAERAEEROES  MERTEREANMHERS  KRMOHfERE
B URBEBEMNSRITRERGE-

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and ~ Our Supply Chain
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B iR AR B 1E B5.3 A EEBAGEERETERGNRRREERBOEN - LA KM HERE
RABRBIT REERGE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally ~ Our Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

Bl B RUEIE B5.4 HATEREHERREEEZRRRERERENED - A& HMAHERE
HHEMITRERTE -
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BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEHE-BH-

—BREERBRENER

Section/Statement

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BHEB6: EmMEME
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1

BAB AR IR BT
KPIB6.2

A SR 4B I 12 B6.2
KPI B6.3

BABAA IR B3
KPI B6.4
B AE 51T B6.A
KPIB6.5

BAEAE AIR1R B6.5

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

EHEFEREMNRBNRERELZS  EE ZHELES

BUARBRITER

(@ HWE: R

(b)) BTFHETABERZENEBREEZRBAMIGER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls

for safety and health reasons.

EEXDEXREMEHPRELZZHRFEERMARNKMNES L

Number of products and service-related complaints received

and how they are dealt with.

FEANRERRRBOIRFEE A REHTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights.

B RIRE AR ERE S ABA -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

g ERTRERERBIKER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,

how they are implemented and monitored.

HUH B EERMRE MALRRER - ARBERITRERTA -

;01

Product Responsibility

Not applicable to the
Group’s business
TiE AR EARE B
Product Responsibility

EmBE

Not applicable to the
Group’s business
TNERAREREEER
Product Responsibility
EmEFE

Product Responsibility

an & 1
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BRXACRE - ERERBEREDABRRS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Section/Statement

TEHER - BEH  —REERBRERER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B®EB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— MR BN ILRRER - BR  BGFREREN

(@ EE: K

(b)) BFHBRTABERATENHEBEIRRBANER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the outcomes of the cases.

8 1 4B B 1S B7.1 RBEHANEBRTASHEHEEREVEELENE SFLEY
BB E RFAER -

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

RSB MIEIE BT .2 wial Py E e e R R IE - AR T RER A o

KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

BASR AR B 1EB7.3 HmESERETREMNRESET -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[ETEBS: HtERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

—RRIEE EANMEZ2ERTHEEMTHERTENBREEL S
2E BT EABOR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

RS AR IE1E B8 ErEREE(WHE  RBEFH - SLIFK - &F -
BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

FASRIA IE1E B8.2 TEFTHRSMBANER (N ELEFR) -
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Business Ethics

[EEZEL

clat

There were no such cases
during the Reporting
Period

MRS BES B R R
HEAE

Business Ethics

[BESELS
Business Ethics

[SE 3K

el

Community Investment

HERIEE
Community Investment
HEIRE

community Investment
MEREE



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (“Mr. Ng"”), aged 52, is the chairman of the Board,
the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive Director
and one of the controlling Shareholders. He was appointed as a
Director on 11 July 2019 and was re-designated as an executive
Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 17 December 2019. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He acquired Success
Base Engineering Limited (“Success Base Engineering”) in
November 2004 and has been a director of Success Base
Engineering since then. Mr. Ng has been a director of Team World
Company Limited since its establishment in July 2019. Mr. Ng is
responsible for formulating business plan, engaging in major decision
making and monitoring the overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ng is
the spouse of Ms. Zhao, an executive Director.

Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the fitting-out industry and
project management. Mr. Ng initially entered the fitting-out industry
by working in B.S.C. Interior Contract and Engineering Company
Limited, a fitting-out contractor, from April 1991 to September 2001,
and his last position held was assistant project manager. Mr. Ng then
worked in New Portfolio Design & Engineering Company Limited, a
fitting-out contractor, from June 2002 to December 2003 as a general
manager responsible for managing fitting-out projects.

Mr. Ng obtained a Bachelor of Arts in business and management
from University of Sunderland in March 2023 and obtained a Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Administration from Lincoln University
College in September 2024.

Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe (“Ms. Zzhao"), aged 45, was appointed as
a Director and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
December 2019. She joined the Group in July 2012 as an
administration manager of Success Base Engineering and held such
position till September 2017. Ms. Zhao has been a director of
Success Base Engineering since January 2018. Ms. Zhao is
responsible for overseeing the financial, administrative and
operational matters of our Group. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng
(the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company, an executive Director and one of the controlling
Shareholders).

Ms. Zhao obtained an adult higher education certificate in art and
design from the Shenzhen University in July 2005 and obtained a
Bachelor of Arts in Business and Management from University of
Sunderland in June 2023. She is a licensed individual insurance agent
in Hong Kong.

EEhEREHEEBEE
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ho Kan Yan ( “Dr. Ho"), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 December 2024. She is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Dr. Ho is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board.

Dr. Ho graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Marketing and The University of Hong
Kong with a Master of Philosophy Degree in Business and a Bachelor
Degree in Business Administration (Accounting and Finance). Dr. Ho
has extensive experience in education and marketing. Since
September 2015, Dr. Ho has been serving as an associate professor
in the Department of Management, Marketing, and Information
Systems (formerly the Department of Marketing) of the Hong Kong
Baptist University, and from September 2009 to August 2015, she
served as an assistant professor in the same department. Dr. HO is
currently a member of the Occupational Safety and Health Council,
being a statutory body established under the Occupational Safety
and Health Council Ordinance (Chapter 398 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Mr. Yip Kit Chau ( “Mr. Yip"), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 October 2023. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Yip is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Mr. Yip graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Accounting and
Finance) and has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Since November 2022, Mr. Yip has been
serving as chief financial officer and company secretary of FSM
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1721). From August 2021 to October 2022, Mr.
Yip served as group financial controller of a non-public multinational
apparel manufacturing company. From April 2020 to July 2021, Mr.
Yip has served as financial controller of a non-public multinational
electronics manufacturing company. From September 2008 to March
2020, Mr. Yip worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers with his final
position as senior manager in audit and assurance services. Mr. Yip
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA, ("Mr. Law"), aged 67, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 17 January 2024. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Law is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Mr. Law graduated from University of London with a Bachelor Degree
of Laws, Hawaii Pacific University with a Bachelor Degree of Science
(Business Administration and Accounting), University of California,
Berkeley with a Master’s Degree of Business Administration (Finance)
and University of Hawaii with a Bachelor Degree of Science (Civil
Engineering). He has extensive experience in advisory, consulting
and corporate finance work. Since April 2010, Mr. Law has been
serving as director of TIC Associates Limited, a corporate finance
advisory services consulting firm. From 2011 to February 2020, Mr.
Law served as business director of a licensed corporation which
carried out Type 6 regulated activity under the SFO. From April 2005
to March 2010, Mr. Law served as general manager in finance of the
Hong Kong Productivity Council and chairman of its operating units
in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Law is also a Fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
CPA Australia.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Yuk Ming (“Mr. Choi”), aged 53, is the financial
controller of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2007 and
is mainly responsible for accounting and finance management of the
Group.

Mr. Choi has over 20 years of experience in accounting. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as a senior accounts clerk in BB
Telecom Limited from August 1996 to July 1997. He was an
accounting officer in C.A. Pacific Forex Limited from August 1997 to
April 1998. From May 1998 to October 2004, Mr. Choi worked in
Philips Electronics Hong Kong Limited and his last position held was
assistant accountant. From October 2005 to November 2007, he
worked in Union Technology International (MCO) Company Limited
and his last position held was accounting manager. He was a director
of Hong Kong Decoration & Engineering Association Limited, a
company limited by guarantee that engages in promoting the fitting-
out industry in Hong Kong, from March 2019 to August 2019.

Mr. Choi obtained a bachelor of science in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in May 2003 and May 2008, respectively, and has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2005.

Mr. Shum Hoi Luen (“Mr. Shum”), aged 49, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 17 December 2019 and is responsible for the
secretarial affairs of the Group.

Mr. Shum has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing
and over 10 years of experience in company secretarial affairs. Mr.
Shum is currently the financial controller and company secretary of
Infinity Development Holdings Company Limited (previously known
as Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 640), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
responsible for overseeing its company secretarial affairs, corporate
governance and corporate finance matters.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company.
The principal activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6
to 12 of this annual report. These discussions form part of the Report
of the Directors. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to environmental protection.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group has also
reviewed its environmental policies and performance from time
to time in order to minimise the environmental impacts from its
business operations.

The Group is committed to providing an equal opportunities, a
harmonious and diversified working environment to its employees.

The Group maintains active relationship with its customers in
the industry to explore potential business opportunities and is
highly committed to delivering premium and quality services to its
customers.

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacities).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no material
dispute or argument between the Group and its employees, suppliers
and customers.

Report of the Directors
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Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on pages 34 to
86 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Companies Act (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the SFO, the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned, there were
no material breaches of or non-compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations by the Group that have significant impacts on the
business and operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 33.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 191.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has resolved
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.67 cents
(year ended 31 December 2023: Nil) per ordinary share (totaling
to HK$13,360,000) to the Shareholders, which will be subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 192 of this
annual report. This financial summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

The Group made donation of approximately HK$28,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$38,000).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year ended 31 December 2024.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or requiring the
Company to enter into an agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares was entered into by the Company during
the year under review or subsisted at the end of the year under
review.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed
“Share Options” below.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted on 16 June
2020 and shall be valid until 15 June 2030. The Share Option Scheme
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the eligible participants have had or may have made to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme will provide the eligible participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the
view to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivating the eligible
participants to optimise their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group; and (ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining on-going business relationships with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants

Persons eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Group; (ii) any Directors or directors of any of the Company's
subsidiaries; (i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Group; and (iv) such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

For participants who fail to meet the applicable vesting conditions,
the unvested share options are forfeited, either in whole or in part.
Forfeited share options are cancelled.

Maximum number of Shares

As at 1 January 2024, 31 December 2024 and the date of this annual
report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 76,000,000, representing 9.5% of the issued
Shares (as 4,000,000 share options were granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and subsequently forfeited and cancelled
for the year ended 31 December 2022, which represented 0.5% of
the issued Shares).

No options granted under the Share Option Scheme remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2024.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Shares issuable under share options
to each participant under the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of such limit will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting (with such selected
participant and his associates abstaining from voting).

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive of the Company
or substantial Shareholder, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period up to
the date of grant, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting (with such grantee, his associates and all core
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting).

Time of exercise of an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted. Subject to any vesting period applicable to
share options as determined by the Board, the Share Option Scheme
does not provide for a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Grant of option and acceptance of an offer of options
An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such
relevant acceptance date shall be determined by the Board and set
out in the relevant offer document.

Basis of determining the exercise price of an option
The exercise price of the share options per Share shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event
shall not be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily guotations sheet on the business day on
which the share options are granted,;
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(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the share options
are granted; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year under review, there are no material matters relating
to the Share Option Scheme under the Listing Rules that were
reviewed and/or approved by the Remuneration Committee and the
Company did not have any matters relating to any grants of options
to the Directors or the senior management of the Company as set
out in rule 17.03F and rules 17.06B(7) and (8) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not grant any share
options under the Share Option Scheme to any other persons during
the year under review that is required to be disclosed under rule
17.07 of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2024,
calculated under the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$47,312,000 (2023:
approximately HK$49,259,000). The share premium account of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles and provided
that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts immediately as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 69.8% of the Group's total revenue
and revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 21.7% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
sub-contractors of the Group accounted for approximately 70.9%
of the Group’s total purchases and approximately 31.3% of the
Group's total subcontracting fees for the year ended 31 December
2024 respectively. The purchases from the largest supplier and
subcontracting fees paid to the largest sub-contractor of the Group
accounted for approximately 63.5 of the Group’s total purchases
and approximately 14.2% subcontracting fees for the year ended 31
December 2024 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the shares of the Company) had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yip Kit Chau
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA

(Appointment with effect from 17 January 2024)
Dr. Ho Ka Yan

(Appointment with effect from 1 December 2024)
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing

(Resignation with effect from 17 January 2024)
Mr. Ip Sze Ching

(Resignation with effect from 1 December 2024)
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In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles, Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe, being an executive Director, and Mr. Yip Kit Chau, being an
independent non-executive Director, will retire from office by rotation
at the 2024 AGM. Being eligible, each of them will offer herself or
himself for re-election as an executive Director or independent non-
executive Director (as the case may be) at the 2024 AGM.

Dr. Ho Ka Yan was appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 December 2024. Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the
Articles, Dr. Ho will hold office only until the 2024 AGM and will then
be eligible for re-election as an independent non-executive Director
at the 2024 AGM.

The Company received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his or her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules, the changes in information of the Directors since the
disclosure made in the 2024 interim report of the Company are as
follows:

1. Dr. Ho Ka Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 December 2024.

2. Mr. Ip Sze Ching resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above and in elsewhere in this annual report, there
iS no change to any information required to be disclosed in relation
to any Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 87 to 90 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval
at the general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by
the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year and as at the date of approval of this annual
report, pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the
Director in connection with any legal proceedings in which he or she
is involved by reason of being a Director, and in which the judgement
is given in his or her favour or in which he or she is acquitted. The
Company has maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers'
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers
arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director
nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party for the year ended 31 December
2024.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling Shareholders or the Directors and their
respective associates is interested in a business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2024.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were
as follows:

(i) Long position in the Shares

Name of Director
EEEE

Capacity
&5

Interest in controlled
corporation

Mr. Ng (Note 1)

REE (M) R EEE R
Ms. Zhao (Note 2) Interest of spouse
L (KisE2) [N
Notes:
1. Mr. Ng is interested in the entire issued share capital of Space Plus

Investment Company Limited (“Space Plus”) and he is therefore deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Space Plus by virtue of the SFO.

2. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Ng by virtue of the SFO.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation of
the Company

Name of
Director

Name of associated

corporation

Capacity

HEEZEEE EEHR &t

Space Plus Mr. Ng Beneficial owner
RESE EmBEAA
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Number of Percentage of
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FiERGBE B BB
600,000,000 Long 75%
Sy
600,000,000 Long 75%
e
B &L
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Number of Percentage of
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e
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, other than those disclosed above in
respect of the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares were disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

Number of
Shares held
R A8 E

Name of Shareholder
BRER

Capacity
v

Beneficial owner
EmERA

Space Plus

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF DIRECTORS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of them constitutes
a connected transaction or a continuing connected transaction as
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (if
applicable) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no other material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2024 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 25 June 2025.
A notice convening the 2024 AGM will be published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website and despatched to
the Shareholders (if requested) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
20 June 2025 to Wednesday, 25 June 2025, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares shall be effected. In order
to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 June 2025.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
7 July 2025 to Wednesday, 9 July 2025, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares shall be effected. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 July 2025.

References to time and dates in this annual report are to Hong Kong
time and dates.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Ng Chi Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Superland Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Superland Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 110 to 191, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024,

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEh R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the revenue

FARESEE

RRETFHERERMNBEXRAE  RBYHAE

MG BREANETRAEENSTH ELF
IEEE?UF? AABRRGAMBRALHARRE
ETREN - HATSHELERRHEEBNE
8o

BPEFEAT R OERESFFHERES

recognition on fitting-out contracts.

Key Audit Matter

HAEETEE

WesER AR o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNMEERESETTEE

Revenue recognition on fitting-out
contracts
EBEEHRFER

Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 5 of the consolidated
financial statements.
BBV B RERM T4 RS -

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue
from fitting-out contracts was approximately
HK$202 million (2023: HK$1,008 million).

BE-F-MFT-A=t+-BLFE EE
BHWELHAE2EEETL(ZE =4 : 1,008
BEBL) °

Revenue from fitting-out contracts is recognised
over the period of the contract according to the
total contract price and the stage of completion
which is measured by the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation on the basis of the actual costs
incurred by the Group up to the year-end date as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

REGHREBREBESHNEERTIBEREL

HIAER M ITHERARE EEBEEF
HEEMEENERKAMES A QMR AERE

MBADH  BREREOEENERTE -
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on fitting-out
contracts included:
BMERREANBEERNIEF B

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment processes, assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors,
such as subjectivity of assumptions and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

— THREEBEENNIESIRFGIER - @BAE BTN TEE
MEREMEBRREAZNREE (IRENFEBEEREREESN
R RS EGEFR AT aR 1) - sV E RS R Rt ) B B R

— Understood, evaluated and validated key controls over revenue
recognition on fitting-out contracts;
— T SERERBEHEESOWNREREBERIZES

—  Selected projects in progress on a sample basis to review
contracts and correspondence with customers for contract
terms and variations requested by customers and to
understand the respective work nature and contractual
relationship with the customers;

— MWMEBHETFIEE  UBHEOEREHBEREEP EK
MWEEMETPIELNERKYG T THRSEIELERE
P& RRIE

EERAR A A



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

REETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi e R

FAREETTEE &)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNMEERRETSE

The management’s estimation on the variations
requested by customers and budgeted cost is
primarily based on historical recovery rate on
variations, fitting-out contract budget and actual
cost report prepared by internal quantity
surveyors.
EREHEFPERNEE RBEM AN
TEERBEEFNRENKE RKEEHNBE
RAERTEDR S A AR ) B IR AR S o

We focused on auditing revenue recognition on
fitting-out contracts because the estimation of
total budget cost and contract price from
variations is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to this
area is considered significant due to subjectivity
of significant assumptions used such as
estimation on the variations requested by
customers and budgeted cost primarily based on
historical recovery rate on variations, and
significant judgements involved in the estimation.
HREERAEERENERNAE I RSE
et TMEEER R HBEMEINEAREGH
WG ER - BRI EEREREFEE
M EFPERNEENGT REERES
FHBENREMGROBERR) ARE
mEth P RERAE  RARBREHTENER
RFERAK o

— Discussed with the Group’s management, quantity surveyors
and project managers the status of the projects and enquired
about and assessed management’s assumptions on estimated
costs to complete including future subcontracting and material
costs, and reviewed the quotations from subcontractors and
suppliers;

— H BEEEERE - IHAISMEREBEBELESREE MR
AR RFHEE R B AT R I (BIERRD 8RR A)
R - WEE D B REEEOIRE

—  Performed site visit on a sample basis, checked to subsequent
events and financial information available to us, and obtained
explanations for fluctuations in margins to determine whether
there could be other factors affecting the calculation of stage
of completion;

— HTHRGHE  WRESHRBEMUSNMBERETZE
UWERBEFBREESNERE IRt AEMEETER
TREBRMETE

—  Checked the historical recovery rate of the completed projects
by comparing the estimated cost and variations against actual
outcomes to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process;

— BBRLERMEARARBCERERER RECDTKIEBNA
FRrIE - T BB RERR T AR

— Tested the total costs incurred as at the end of the reporting
period and performed cut-off testing, on a sample basis, by
checking to the underlying documents supporting these costs
(including invoices of material costs and subcontracting fees
and time cost calculation of the project staff); and

— HREMAEREEANEAERETAS  WHBETELLR
HAEAREREERANEEZAXG (BEMBRA R
PEEBNBENNREEEINRMEKAFTE) &

— Tested mathematical accuracy of the calculations of contract
revenue and costs.
— BAREHNRERKAGTENRE LR -

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that the
judgement and estimates adopted by management in the revenue
recognition of fitting-out contracts based on stage of completion
were supported by the available evidence.
BERMETHEANRET BMEREEEABE T IRERER
RGN EREL MR REHSIEFRZS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEh R E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

106 Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEh R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Li Wang Kei.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeEzEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE-—FT_mE+—A=1+—HIFZF

2024 2023
—ENF —E=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHIT
Revenue e 5 902,316 1,008,101
Cost of services PR 75 B AR 7 (781,377) (878,536)
Gross profit EX 120,939 129,565
Other income E A 6 1,332 2,295
Other gains/(losses), net Hib iz (E18) F58 6 270 (589)
Administrative expenses TERE M 7 (63,295) (71,023)
Impairment loss on trade receivables BORWFIBERGHNEE
and contract assets, net BIEEE TR 3.1(a)i) (769) (2,990)
Profit before finance income and MR BEBARRER
costs and income tax expense FrEBim AR R 58,477 57,258
Finance income IR TN 10 194 92
Finance costs BF 7 PR AR 10 (35,375) (31,417)
Profit before income tax expense  FRFETSH B X BB R 23,296 25,933
Income tax expense FriSfiF = 1 (4,412) (3,765)
Profit and total comprehensive EAREEAEEERENR
income for the year attributable TEINmAE
to owners of the Company 18,884 22,168
Earnings per share attributable KATEEAEEESREF
to the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted BEARREE (AFRBIWZES)
(expressed in HK cents per share) 12 2.36 277
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FeMBKkAE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
R=ZF-—mFE+=-HA=+—H

2024 2023
—ENF —E=%F
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTExT T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets REBEE
Plant and equipment ek I w5 1 14 3,024 886
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 20,136 6,165
Investments in insurance contracts REELHIRE 16 59,389 49,812
Other receivables, deposits HMEWHIE  Ze &k
and prepayments TR RIE 19 43,634 35,822
Deferred income tax assets RSB E 17 1,526 1,772
127,709 94,457
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables E 5 e IE 19 158,961 114,855
Other receivables, deposits HMEWREIA Ze Rk
and prepayments TR 38 19 90,770 101,707
contract assets AHEE 20 622,297 513,703
Pledged time deposits B E BFER 21 7,187 3,127
Cash and cash equivalents BehkIReEEY 21 57,862 42,391
Tax recoverable AT Uk Bl # A 636 82
937,713 775,865
Total assets HmEE 1,065,422 870,322
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEREAE
Equity attributable to owners KATEEABEER
of the Company
Share capital &N 22 8,000 8,000
Reserves ki 88,506 88,506
Retained earnings REBEF 123,530 104,646
Total equity g 220,036 201,152
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBKAE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
R=F-—m{FE+=-HA=+—H

2024 2023
—ENF —E=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT T T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liability FkREBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 17,153 213
Accruals fEETE R 809 =
Y . 17,962 213
current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables S EMNFIE 23 171,044 75,689
Accruals, retention payables EArER BHREBEK
and other liabilities HihBE 23 121,994 113,968
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 3,815 6,136
Contract liabilities AHEE 20 53,159 35,172
Borrowings BR 24 477,412 437,992
827,424 668,957
Total liabilities wmasE 845,386 669,170
Total equity and liabilities xRk EAR 1,065,422 870,322
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA _E4R4& 87 %54k 5 2= /8 B2 B8 BT B 5 — B B AE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 191 were  RETNMOE N BENGATEREN T -0 F

=
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 =B - ++HEARREESRETEE -

and were signed on its behalf.

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe

REBEE HERLZL
Director Director
- -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEaEnx

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
BE-—ZFT-_mE+-_F=+—HIFEZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATFHEE AR

Share Capital
capital Share reserve Retained

(Note 22) premium (Note) profits
[N EXRf#E
(MF5E22) RDEHE () HREEA
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHETT T

At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 82,478 178,984

Profit and total comprehensive  ER &M R 2E

income for the year W 4858 - - - 22,168 22,168
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A
=+—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 104,646 201,152

Profit and total comprehensive — F /&R &2 H

income for the year W e 4858 - - - 18,884 18,884
At 31 December 2024 RZZEZWF+=A
=—+—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 123,530 220,036

Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the group companies — BfisE : BAREEIEEB RGN A FERRA N TR EAKKE
and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity holders of subsidiaries upon NElEERFEAERBARMNEE -
completion of reorganisation.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE-—FT_mE+—A=1+—HIFZF

2024 2023
—ENF —E=4F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHERT THET

Cash flows from operating activities & ZEFIEREARE

Cash generated from operations LEMBIRE 25(a) 38,888 25,921

Hong Kong profits tax paid BREEFEH (4,720) (6,095)
Net cash generated from BB TSR )58

operating activities 34,168 19,826

cash flows from investing activities REZEBHFESRESFE

Purchase of plant and equipment I8 B N a5 A (3,225) (568)

Purchase of insurance contract BERREEH 16 (9,294) (15,058)

Interest received 2 U F B 194 92
Proceeds from disposal of plant o e N R B P 1S SR

and equipment - 36

Net cash used in investing activities KEZRHFARSFHE (12,325) (15,498)

cash flows from financing activities BE EZESHFEREFE

Increase in pledged time deposits B T BA 1E 28 0 (4,060) -

Interest paid ERHLE 25(b) (35,375) (31,417)

Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEEaE 25(h) (6,357) (5,816)

Drawdown of borrowings REER 25(0) 1,424,526 1,447,915

Repayments of borrowings BEER 25(b) (1,385,106) (1,423,082)

_Netcashusedin financing activities ~ BEEBMARSFER  (6372)  (12,400)

Net increase/(decrease) in HeERBSSEYEM

cash and cash equivalents Om2) Z8 15,471 (8,072)
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERBEESEEY

at beginning of the year 42,391 50,463
Cash and cash equivalents ERASKRBESEEY

at end of the year 21 57,862 42,391
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11
July 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act (As revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company's registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is 18/F,
Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) provide fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services to residential and commercial properties
in Hong Kong. The immediate and ultimate parent company of
the Company is Space Plus Investment Company Limited. The
controlling shareholder of the company is Ng Chi Chiu (“Mr.
Ng").

The Company listed its shares on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 July 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for investments in key management
insurance contracts which are measured at cash surrender
value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

116

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Amendments to standards and interpretation

adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments to
standards and interpretation for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants
Amendments to Lease liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Hong Kong Classification by the Borrower of a
Interpretation 5 Term Loan that Contains a
(Revised) Repayment on Demand Clause
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The adoption of these new and amendments to
standards and interpretation did not result in any
substantial change to the Company’s accounting policies.
The amended standards and conceptual framework
listed above did not have any significant impact on the
amounts recognised in prior years and are not expected
to significantly affect the current or future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) New and amendments to standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the Group

Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1

ERGHENEN R LB BT RS
AR ZE 1SR EEE]

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Lack of Exchangeability
RZ AT ARt

Classification and Measurement of

=8 MB B RME

2 mEEEREHBE®E)

(b) AR 1 R ERAN O HTR] RS ET
EARZE

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
AR5 BHH 2%
HRNETEEENR

1 January 2025
—E-RHF—HF—H

1 January 2026

Financial Instruments

BEAUBHRELENEIRRBEBY RS
AR 7SR HMEE]T

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
and HKAS 7

EAUBHRELENE 1S - BV BRE
LRE7 BEMEHRELERNZFEIWR
BEMGRELEBE10R BB
ERIZE TR

HKFRS 18

BB RS AR E 185
HKFRS 19

BAEVEREERFE 195
Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5

eI ASERE —EZRF—H—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2026
Accounting Standards — Volume 11

BEV B REER T ERNEE —EZRF—H—H
HUE — 1110

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial 1 January 2027
Statements

W mEANES L= —ET-t+F—H—H

Subsidiaries without Public 1 January 2027
Accountability: Disclosures

FAHZAEETNNBLAR  HE —ZE-+F—HF—H

Classification by the Borrower of a Term 1 January 2027
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

BRAH B SR EREEERD —E+F—H—H

ERRBESHENERT

BEHERND A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between an

To be determined

investor and its associate or joint

venture —
FREVBHRELENE IR RBEGH LR REFHABERFTXEEDLE fFE
5 285 MVIER] ZHEAMEELESTE

The Group will adopt the above new and amendments to
standards and interpretation when they become
effective.

The above new and amendments to standards and
interpretation are not expected to have a material impact
on the financial statements of the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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REMBERRME

3
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Superland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group'’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

(@) Credit risk
() Risk management
The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
contract assets, and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Management considers the Group has limited
credit risk with its banks which are leading
and reputable and are assessed as having
low credit risk. Majority of bank balances are
deposited with reputable banks. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from non-
performance by these parties in the past and
management does not expect so in the
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBERERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) credit risk (continued)

()

Risk management (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The procedures
focus on the evaluations on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer,
such as its financial position, past experience
and other factors, as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk on trade receivables from the
Group's five largest customers approximately
amounting to HK$94,439,000 (2023:
HK$105,055,000), and accounted for
approximately 59% (2023: 89%) of the total
trade receivables balance. The major
customers of the Group are reputable
organisations. Management considers that
the credit risk is limited in this regard.

The Group's other financial assets at
amortised cost are considered to be low risk.
Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability.

3 H¥RARERE®
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REMBERRME

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(@

(ii)

Impairment of assets
The Group has four types of assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables;
o contract assets;

o other receivables at amortised cost;
and

. cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits.

While cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (continuead) 3.1 HKRAKREZE(#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@) &R (E)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBAERGHNEE
(continued) (%)
Receivable relating to customers with known H1E 4078 B 7% TR B ok ET R

financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. The following table presents the
balances of gross carrying amounts and the
loss allowance in respect of the individually
assessed trade receivables by invoice date as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Past due

At 31 December 2023 Current  within 30 days
kN

08

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEME{E (FH ) - 2,866
Expected credit oss rates RHEEEEX - 100%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) ER&E(TAT) - (2,866)

Past due
3110 60 days

b
31Z60H

o] fE Uk SR IEH E RSB
EEFHEEMNERFIESE
TE RIS - AR E
B TRIZHZA B
HHEZ-_NFER_-ZF
—=FF+ZA=+—HKE
&R EH B & 5 e W zoE
MEEmENEERES
ﬁ%o

Past due Past due
61to90days  over 90 days
ks kol
61290 A 90 A
- - 2,866
= = (2,866)

Net carrying amount (HKS'000) ~ BREFE(TiETL) = =

Other than those trade receivables which
were assessed by individual basis, the Group
divided trade receivables and contract assets
into two categories to measure the expected
credit losses. For category 1, it includes those
customers which are reputable organisations
and with good repayment history. The
expected credit loss rate for these trade
receivables and contract assets are
determined according to a provision matrix
where balances that are less than 24 months
overdue are provided for at expected credit
loss rates of 0.00-0.15% and trade
receivables more than 24 months overdue
are 100% provided for.

BRIZERNEETHZES
EU GBI AEEBE
SERREREHNEED
BWE UFrEEHEER
ERE-pENImE =
PEAEERUKERE
HEBRITNEF -B5
JEUGRIEREHEEMNTE
HEEBEXRREREG
EEmET  HEPIREHR
ZEEBEX0.00ZE0.15%
sHiRBmE D R 248 A o0 45
# 0 WARBGTIRE 24
AU EME ZREWFIE -
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REMBERRME
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(@

(ii)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

For category 2, it includes customers other
than category 1 above. The expected credit
loss rate for the trade receivables and
contract assets are determined according to
a provision matrix where balances that are
less than 24 months overdue are provided for
at expected credit loss rates of 0.005-0.25%
and trade receivables more than 24 months
overdue are 100% provided for.

Based on the management assessment, the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets is HK$1,117,000 (2023:
HK$348,000) for the year ended 31 December
2024.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of
each reporting period was determined as
follows for trade receivables.
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=8 MB B RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMH¥RRERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥EKEZE &)
(@) Credit risk (continued) (@) &R (E)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEWHEE)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESREWRERENEE
(continued) (%)
A Past due Past due Past due Past due
At 31 December 2024 Current  within 30days  31toe0days  61to90days  over 90 days
BETER ol ol ki3
L 308 31Z60A 61290A 90H
Category 1: B
Customers havea relatiely  EEBEHREAE
low credt risk and EhEsnEP
10 default history
Gross carrying amount (HKS'000)  EEAE (FiET) 82,556 8,228 4137 1,233 3,626 99,780
Expected creditloss rates BHEEERE 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.08% 0.15%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEAE(TET) - - - (1) (5) (6)
Net carrying amount (HKS000) ~ BEFE (Fi#mm) 82,556 8,28 4137 1,232 3,621 99,774
Category 2 A2
Customers havearelatively  EERBEHEEHEF
higher credt risk
Gross carmying amount (HK$000) B ELE (FAT) 49,01 2823 - - 7,364 59,208
Expected creditloss rates RREERER 0.00% 0.00% - - 0.25%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREE(TET) @) = = s (19) (21)
Net carryingamount ($000) ~ BEFE(FAT) 49,019 2823 - - 7,345 59,187

Trade receivables and contract~ Z BEMGIERA L
assets (continued) BE(%) 131,575 11,051 4137 1,232 10,966 158,961
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBERERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 KRAKREZE#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@ =ERKE)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBABEREGHNEE
(continued) (&)
RZ Past due Past due Past due Past due
At 31 December 2023 J Curent  within300ays ~ 31to60days 611090 days over 90 days
il ol Gl
ke NZH0H ES=!
Category 1: B
Customers have a relatiely  EEBEHREAE
low credt risk and EHTRNER
10 default history
Gross carrying amount (HKS'000) R ££(E () 73877 528 11,288 6477 760 104,500
Expected creditloss rates BHEEERE 0016% 0038% 0035% 0.11% 0.16%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEAE(TET) (12) @ @ 0 (12) (37)
Net camyingamount (kS 000) A& (F#70) 73865 520 11,284 6470 7618 104463
Category 2 B2
Customers haveareltiely — FEEBEHEEHES
higher crediit isk
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BE & (E (T ) 8424 2010 - - % 10533
Expected creditloss rates BREERER 030% 085% - - 100%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EERE(TET) (25) (17) - - (99) (141)
Net carrying amount (HKS000) ~ BEFE (Fi#mm) 8399 199 - - - 10392

Totaltrade receivables, net BHRNFELETE
(HKS'000) (Fén) 82,264 7219 11,284 6470 7618 114,85
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RARERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuead) 3.1 HKRAKREZE(#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@) &Rk #E)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBAERGHNEE

(continued) (%)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of BIEE EHNEERS
each reporting period was determined as WMEHRKRNEBEEREEET
follows for contract assets. W e

2024
—E-NF

Current
B A

2023
T
Current

BN A

Category 1: KR
Customers have a relatively low 1= B'J& fz 151 &K B #
credit risk and no default history — iE#)EER 6 E P

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRmE 4218 (T8 7T) 466,621 482,391

Expected credit loss rates JEHEEEIEX 0.15% 0.016%

Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) j& 18 # & (T8 1) (694) (79)
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000) ~ AREVFE (T/87) 465927 482312

Category 2: ¥R :

Customers have a relatively 1EERBRIE B e 5P

higher credit risk

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BRE 42(E (T L) 156,766 31,482

Expected credit loss rates FEHEEEEX 0.25% 0.29%

Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) &8 % & (T8 71) (396) 91
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000) ~ fREF(E(FEmT) 156,370 31,391

Total contract assets, net (HK$'000) & 49°& E #2 58 F & (T8 7T) 622,297 513,703
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The loss allowance provision for trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2024 reconciles to the opening
loss allowance for that provision as follows:

As at 1 January 2023 NZEZ=F

3 BH¥RARERE®

3.1 MBEBEREE)
(@ FERRGE)

(i) EERE (&)
BSRBABEREGHNEE
(%)
RZE_@WmF+ = A
=+—H mEBESEKXK
HEAEHEENTIZRER
BB IR VI B
RIERRINT -

Contract
Assets
BHEE
HK$'000
TAET

Trade
Receivables
g 5 EWFEIE

Total
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TET

—A—H 142 82 224
Provision for impairment 318 % 2,902 88 2,990
As at 31 December 2023 R -ZT - =4
+=-A=+—H 3,044 170 3,214
(Reversal)/provision for  SE{E (@),
impairment B (151) 920 769
Receivables written 85K UK (0] Y FE U
off during the year TRIE P AN EF S 8H
as uncollectible (2,866) - (2,866)
As at 31 December 2024 # =T Z U4
+=-A=+—8H 27 1,090 1,117

Other receivables at amortised cost

Other receivables at amortised cost mainly
represents other receivables and deposits in
reputable financial institutions. Management
considers that its credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial position.
The impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected credit 10ss
which is immaterial.
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fReMBERERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Market risk

()

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

Most of the income and expenditures of the
Group are denominated in HK$, being the
functional currency of the Group, and hence,
the Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank deposits and bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by the bank deposits.
The interest rate profile of bank borrowings is
disclosed in Note 24. The bank deposits
generate interest at the prevailing market
interest rates.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,723,000 (2023:
HK$1,639,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower expenses on floating
rate interest bearing assets and bank
borrowings.

3 H¥RARERE®
31 MBREMEZ (&)

(b) THER
) SMNERR
AEB R WA KL H

(ii)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interests payments computed
using contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the period-end date). Where the
loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time, the amounts
repayable are classified in the earliest time bracket
in which the lender could demand repayment. The
maturity analysis for remaining financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

3

=8 MB B RME

BEERER &)

3.1
(c)

B EREEE)

RBESREE (&)
TRIREBEHEGEEBHRREKA
HIZE A 4 3 81 B a0 R 64 B R A
AEENSBRAED T AER
MBI AR - ERABENE
BMARHAMARERE (B
RAGHNES (INAFEHX)
BHARAMBRTHEAENF
BAR - HERBZEESRE
KEEGRT G TERAERK
HFHEMAIERZRBFEER
AEREESRERAERATER
REFNRERR -H TR
BEMIHE DR EIER
FAEmE

Ondemand Within 1year  Over 1 year Total
REREE 1R BR1F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2024 RZTZWE
+-A=+—H
Trade payables B o ENTIE - 171,044 - 171,044
Accruals, retention payables  [EEHEHR - BT RBE R
and other liabilities HmBaE - 113,997 - 113,997
Bank borrowings RITER 477,412 - - 477,412
Lease payables and HERNFERERFS
interest payables - 3,926 21,005 24,931
477,412 288,967 21,005 787,384
Ondemand  Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
REREER 1R HiB1F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET AT THET
As at 31 December 2023 RZZT_=F
+-A=+—H
Trade payables BHRTHE - 75,689 - 75,689
Accruals, retention payables [zt &R - BN RE SR
and other liabilities HingE - 98,548 = 98,548
Bank borrowings RITER 437,992 - - 437,992
Lease payables and HERNFERERFE
interest payables = 6,341 214 6,555
437,992 180,578 214 618,784
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 HH¥ERERERE#)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BERKREZ£E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) wBELREAMK(E)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis contained in the
above table.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management during the year.

TREEABREREEGEK
BV IR 1T 8 IR R & TR 1% 8 T 8L
HERBIERLHFNEHA D
fr-EHETEBEEREAEON
REFEOMBMR - Bt - ZF
TEARELRAEBH A D
MEY R ERKEE] BB
FEEEEE -

AR E AR E IR R
=2 -

Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings and interest payable
without taking into account of repayment on demand clause
of certain bank borrowings, based on scheduled repayments

130

EHESHERZENIMA 4 — RTERREANE
(R RABRERBERNNE TRITER)

Within 1 year
15/
HK$'000
FHT

Asat31December 2024 MZZ &

1t0 2 years
1228/
HK$'000
TEx

2to5years Over5 years

Total
@t
HK$'000
THET

5L
HK$'000
THT

2855
HK$'000
TEx

+ZRA=1+—8H 466,586 3,175 8,684 318 478,763
Asat31December2023 MZZ-=%
+ZRA=1+—8H 428875 3,027 5,012 2,547 439,461

Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {24 £ E 5 AR A 7
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RARERE®

3.2 cCapital risk management 32 EXEKBER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, sell assets to reduce debt or repay borrowings
when cash received from non-trade receivables. Also,
the Group continues to monitor and maintain the
sufficiency of banking facilities for its operations.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged time
deposits. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2024 and 2023 was as
follows:

AEENEAEERRERERLRFE
S ABBRERERE®RE R
HpS &S KN m  YHREE
ARBAR D ESIA - BH#ER LB
BEARRE  AREAFHBEIRMN TR
RS REEATHER %
T# ki HEBENBR D BB
B FRAGRIEWRE ‘JfﬁéET1§E1ﬁM°
BEAN  REEBEE R R ZE
FIBHIRITEERRM

HERNHEMAR K AEENBE
ERBELXERER - W XRFE
BBRIABEARGE - FEBHALMER
FHEABRERERREEFEDNR
CEFEMERTE - BERUKRE
MBI R A FIRE [HE et | hFET
iHE-

RZE_WNER T _=ZF+_A
—t+—HAmMEEREBREWNT :

2024 2023

—B-MmE —_FT=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET T

Borrowings BN 24 477,412 437,992

Add: Lease liabilities m-HEAaE 15 20,968 6,349
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  Ji : RE& RIRSEEBEMA R

and pledged time deposits B K E B 21 (65,049) (45,518)

Net debt (L 433,331 398,823

Total equity BRER 220,036 201,152

Total capital HBEKR 653,367 599,975

Gearing ratio BEEBMELE 66% 66%
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3

132

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group analyses its financial instruments’ fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, accruals, retention payables
and other liabilities, borrowings and lease liabilities
approximate their fair values, which either due to their
short-term maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue according to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation
of the individual contract of fitting-out works. The
progress is determined by the aggregated cost for the
individual performance obligation incurred at the end of
the reporting period compared with the estimated
budgeted cost. Management's estimation of the cost
incurred to date and the budgeted cost is primarily based
on fitting-out contract budget and actual cost report
prepared by internal quantity surveyors, where
applicable. Corresponding revenue from contract work is
also estimated by management based on the progress
and estimated revenue which contains variable
consideration. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in the fitting-out contracts, the date at which
the contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. The Group regularly reviews and
revises the estimation of both transaction price and
contract cost in the budget prepared for each fitting-out
contract as the contract progresses.

fReMBERERME

4 BERETHET R HE

fmEt A SR EETH G YREBHE
RELkEMEAERMEL  BEERKEMS
EHRSEERBATEAENEY -

REBMERREH T REBR - REEE -
GRT AT %ﬁ&gﬁmﬁﬁ%m% B e
BEARBREBFEHTEVBRFENEE
&Eﬁ%%@ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%%%ﬁ%&ﬁ
AR RS -

(@) Wzt
AEERBE2EKRBHNEETIRA
HMOEHNEENEEHRARE - 5
EEBURNERIEHE R REHR
EENBRAEERGFTREEMA -
EREHCSEEERARFAEERAN
B ET E RARIR A B8 TRRI 2 A0 AR B
MEEANAERERKARS (fd
ER) MEH - ERERRER R4
s (B2 E2RE) a0 TEN
HE M 2R 1F (A AT Hﬂﬁé‘%%@é%’ﬂ W
T TRABMIEEER
#ey B B EE T IE%L%?FTHW
SEHHIRA - ARBER A LETHER
HREREANRAENTBEARS(E
& R A KR ARl 5HE T BT &
CHIE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

134

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
progress of performance, total contract costs and value
of variation work which may have an impact on
percentage of completion of the fitting-out contracts and
the contract revenue and profit to be recognised in an
accounting period. In addition, actual outcome in terms
of total revenue or costs may be higher or lower than
estimation at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment loss of trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
when trade receivables and contract assets are impaired.
Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of
the risk of default and expected credit losses from each
customer. In making the judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments, customers’ financial
positions and expected future change of credit risks,
including consideration of factors such as general
economy measure, changes in macro-economic
indicators, etc. Details of assumptions and inputs used
are discussed in Note 3.1(a)(ii).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {24 £ E 5 AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

The chairman is identified as the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM") of the Group who reviews the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

As substantial business operations of the Group relate to the
provision of fitting-out and repair and maintenance services,
the CODM makes decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment based on the entity-wide
consolidated financial information. Accordingly, there is only
one single operating segment for the Group qualified as
reportable segment under HKFRS 8. No separate segmental
analysis is presented in the report.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

Fitting-out services RIER
Repair and maintenance services

HEAE I 4 R

=8 MB B RME

iy 5

IFREBERARETELERRE (X
EREREE]) AERFERAEENI R
EFAFEEREDEER ©

HRASENEZXHLERREHREER
MERGERGAR WEBEEREKE
REEEBCUWBERELERERDE
RRBFEZRK - Bt - RIBF BB

EREAE  ARERE—EE—KE
DEMTERAZHOM - MEANLEZT
B DB

(@ WAZHF

2023
T =4

HK$'000
TATT

898,609 1,005,607
3,707 2,494

902,316 1,008,101

The Group'’s revenue is recognised over time for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: same).

(b) Geographical information
All the revenue and assets are based in the Hong Kong
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: same).

REBEE_T-_NF+-_A=+—H01
FE - AEFBKRZDEREER (Z
=& JR) -

(b) IEER
BHE_Z-_NWF+_A=+—HILF
E -FBERahkEEHNEREE(ZE
—Z=F:AER) -
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5 REVENUE (continued)

136

5 WEF )

(c) Revenue from major customers (c)
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for

10% or more of the Group’s revenue for each of the

financial years is set out below:

(d)

REEEEFWE
EVBFEEBEAEEREI10%HIA L
ZREBEBEPZWSHIIMT

2024 2023
“ECNE T =F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FTAT
Customer A =EPA 196,146 203,252
Customer B =FB N/A* 174,833
TEA*
Customer C BFC N/A* 144,234
FEA*
Customer D =FD N/A* 142,254
TEA*
Customer E ZFE 169,662 108,722
Customer F BFEF 115,683 N/A*
@A >
* Represent less than 10% of revenue for the respective year. * TG AR F 2 U ek T 2 10% ©
Revenue recognised in relation to contract (d) HeEHNaBEEENCER RS
liabilities

The following table shows the revenue recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 related to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included & AERHI & 4B EE K
in the contract liability balance atthe ~ R W=

beginning of the period
— Fitting-out services

— RAE R

TERIWRREBEZE-ZE-_NER=-F
—=F+ A=+ —HIEFERER
gL NBEEHHIE -

2023
—E-=F

HK$'000
TATT

35,172 42,967

Superland Group Holdings Limited
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REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts
The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from fitting-out contracts.

=8 MB B RME

&~ 3C )

() REITRHLEBEN

TRINREEAVMEENRERE
MEIE-

2024 2023
—EF

T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FAETT

Aggregate amount of the transaction R+ A=+—BHBEEZH»

price allocated to long term
construction contracts that are
partially or fully unsatisfied

as at 31 December

TEEAREITRIEESON
RBEREEE

945,027 764,568

Management expects that the transaction prices
regarding the unsatisfied contracts at the end of year will
be recognised as revenue by referencing to the schedule

EEERAN RERDEERETA
KR HERG2EATRRRER
Aias

below:
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABTT
Within 1 year 1TFEN 691,756 561,568
Over 1 year HBi@1F 253,271 203,000
945,027 764,568

All other contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

FIEEMAHNNERS —FHUT -
BEREBBVBHRELENFISHAA
AW RKEIETZERETALN
MR 5B
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5 REVENUE (continued)

138

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts

(continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services rendered in the normal
course of business.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected cost
plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable information.

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the good or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. Specific criteria where revenue is
recognised are described below.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts
(continued)
Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(continued)
The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

@)

direct measurements of the value transferred by
the Group to the customer; or

the Group'’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs.

Fitting-out services and repair and maintenance
services

Revenue from the construction services is
recognised over time as the Group's performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The Group has applied the input
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction on a
performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

For fitting-out contracts with fixed price, the Group
recognises the revenue in accordance with the
contract price on the basis of the Group's efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation. The Group considers the input method
better depicts the Group's performance in
transferring control of services to its customers.

fReMBERERME

5 W)
(e) RXBIEHEBEYN (&)

W 2K (E)

BHETNEREZTDRIBEATES
—@7AFE - ARERRAKRERE
TRENEENENRR

s HEFEAKRBEERKETFPH
BE =%

e AEEARGEMNRETMAH
P55 AR (R TE B
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5 REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts

(continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(continued)

(@  Fitting-out services and repair and maintenance

140

Superland Group Holdings Limited

services (continued)

For fitting-out contracts that contain variable
consideration such as variations in contract work,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount. The estimated amount of variable
consideration is included in the fitting-out contract
only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such as inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

For warranty embedded to the fitting-out contracts,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37, “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” as the warranty provides the
customer with assurance that the contracting work
complies with the agreed-upon specifications.
Since the Group's subcontractors are contractually
obligated to rectify the defects at their costs, the
provision for warranty is insignificant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts
(continued)
Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(continued)

b)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customers or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer or
services to the customers. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed by the parties
of the contracts.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does not
have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payments are in accordance
with the typical payment terms of the relevant
industry, which has a primary purpose other than
financing.

fReMBERERME

5 W)
(e) RXBIEHEBEYN (&)

W 2K (E)

b) FEEAFEZLS
REERZERE 0 E K
R (TR AR RS R A
N HEFHAKERATFE
FIRBREREREEERN
AIREEeReBEREABEN
FEMAEREA#HNESE -
EZEBRAT AHNBREEX
BMEBD - Eim R EKE
BRTHERT EEEALN
FIR T W0 E BV SIS FER 2
BRI FEEARERS

BE XAt - e 5T
R AT A — RN FER
BB ASN =R BB IEH
AlGTNEEARERD °

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 ® 2024 £ 5 5} 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n & MBS 3R R B o

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HMWARHEMEEFEEE

Other income Hg A
Innovation and Technology Commission's Al R E M ¥ L iETE (Kista)
Enterprise Support Scheme (Note a) 153 2,295
Research and Development IR e BT (EED)
Cash Rebate Scheme (Note b) 1,179 -
1,332 2,295
Other losses, net HitEsEFE
Exchange loss, net [ 5 & 1 F (2) @)
Changes in surrender values of investments R & 4918 & K IR (R (B E &
in insurance contracts (Note 16) (Mt5E16) 283 (675)
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment L& E K& EREE (48) -
Others HAfb 37 89
270 (589)

(@) Amount represents wage subsidy granted from the @ SWIECEIRTENFEITEER
Enterprise Support Scheme for the research and BT &AL - /LTy AR A R ETT
development work. Subsidies are offered to local BB 3 TVEM 30k - ASE AL & R
companies to conduct in-house research and R & B o
development work with a view to encouraging the private
sector to invest in research and development.

() Amount represents 40% cash rebate of the local (b)) SEERMPERELT RN EES
enterprises’ eligible expenditure contributed to research BEMIAEIEE - A BEEEAA
and development projects funded by the Innovation and EMAREAZ T TE2HAMPEE
Technology Fund and research and development projects BV B2 36 TE AN b N S I SRR A (R
funded entirely by local enterprises and conducted in TRMMEBEEE MY NNEERAIH
partnership with designated local public research 40% 3R & BIHE o

institutes as undertaken by designated local public
research institutes.
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=8 MB B RME

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RUHEBESHEAX

2024

—E-NEF

HK$°000

FTET
Sub-contracting fees PEEBR 323,338 440,229
Materials costs (RSP W 373,764 344,653
Consultation services RS 1,083 817
Depreciation on plant and equipment W ks E 1,039 986
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,005 5,991

Employee benefit expenses EERNMAZ (BEEEIE)

(including directors’ emoluments) (MF5E8)

(Note 8) 100,595 119,216
Auditor's remuneration Z SR BN &

— audit services — 8RR 1,380 1,449
Donation =l 28 38
Entertainment expenses FEBN B 2 1,855 2,000
Legal and professional fee FENEERAY 4,235 3,621
Transportation expenses RiBAZ 1,573 1,572
Office expenses MAERZ 7,458 7,233
Insurance R 4,862 3,790
Other expenses E s 16,457 17,964
Total cost of services and BR 75 K AR R 77 BB S 4258

administrative expenses 844,672 949,559

2024
—E-_NF
HK$°000
FTET
Representing: Rk
Cost of services PR 75 P 2R 781,377 878,536
Administrative expenses TBRZ 63,295 71,023

844,672 949,559

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 2024 £ 4F 3 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n & MBS 3R R B o

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

8 REEREANAX (BREEZEH=)

2024 2023

ZEDIMFE T _=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and bonus e RMRES 95,900 110,346

Pension costs — defined contribution plan  BARE kA — R EH-RETE 3,406 5,831
Other staff welfare and benefit: HETEF :

— Depreciation on right-of-use assets —EAREENE 1,131 1,131

— Provision for long service payment — RERTG B & H 107 702

— Others — HAtb 51 1,206

100,595 119,216

Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 2 directors (Mr. Ng Chi Chiu and Ms. Zhao
Haiyan Chloe) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
same). Their emoluments were reflected in Note 9(a). The
emoluments paid to the remaining 3 highest paid individuals
who are not directors of the Company (2023: 3) are as follow:

HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HBILtEE "
rEERAGESTMALEEMBES (R
EHAEERBESEZL) (ZE =41
B) - MEMFAM T - B F&ET
=R (CEBEC=F =R)BeHFAL L
AAREE)MHBOT

2024 2023

—EmEF —E_=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THT

Salaries, allowances and bonus e SRR RIEA 4,616 4,222
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  EAR& K A — R EHR T2 54 50
4,670 4,272
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=8 MB B RME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEGANMEX(BRESEME) @
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

(continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued) TEESFMALE)

The emoluments of the remaining 3 highest paid individuals BRT=EEeF AL (WIIES) (==
who are not Directors (2023: 3) fell within the following bands: F:=Z)NFPN T THEE

Number of individuals

AE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Emolument band N E
From HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 2 2
From HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
3 3
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the Group RATBRFE  AEEBRERTAILIER
to any of the highest paid individuals who are not a director of RRAEENESHFATIAREBEELMA
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the REBEHMAZ B ZB S ERBEBEE -

Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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n & MBS 3R R B o

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEXEEFE#E#s=

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (@) EEMESREKER
benefits
The remuneration and retirement benefits of the BEHMMRAREFEOT ¢

directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-ZE_-_NMF+-A=+—HLHF
E

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BARERES (FRARAAGENELR) WREEZAAEUNHE

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

Employer's  the affairs of

Allowances contributionto  the Company

Discretionary  and benefits  aretirement or its subsidiary

Fees honuses inkinds benefit scheme  undertaking

ESHER

EAAENE

PEES

EEUEfR  REEIAD
e i META REREAER  BAGAMR Er#e it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TER Th7r THR T#r TR ThR

Executive Directors ki £
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu RERRE(TRER)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 3018 3 1131 18 = 4,544
Ms. Zhao Halyan Chiog el 3 - 1,380 150 - 18 - 1,548
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTEES

Directors
Prof. Chau kwongWing Note )~ BEZ#R (tc) 13 - - - - = 13
Mr. YipKit Chau Victor (Note )~ E78 %4 (W& d) 120 - - = = = 120
Mr.pSzeChingRingo Note )~ E-% 4 (Hizke) 10 - - - = = 10
Mr. Law Hung Wai (Note ) B () 15 - - - = = 15
M. HoKa Yan (Note @ g8 xt (Mikg) 2% - - - - = 25

383 4,398 521 1131 36 = 6,475
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=8 MB B RME

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EETEME#EZR#)
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (@) EEMEREKRER &)
benefits (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_ZE_—F+-_A=+—81L*F
g

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
the Company or its Subsidiary undertaking

a
e

£

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

Employer's the affairs of

Allowances  contributionto  the Company or

Discretionary and benefits a retirement its Subsiclary

Fees bonuses inkinds  benefit scheme Undertaking
EZ]

3 e WERL 2R il /
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAL BT AL ST BT 7T TATL
Executive Directors yfrEs
Mir.Ng Chi Chiu REREE(TRER)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 3018 377 1131 18 - 4,544
Ms. Zhao Halyan Chiog BERLT - 1,380 150 - 8 - 1,58
Non-executive Director FarEs
M. Chan Ming Yim (Note &) R#BELE (Hika) 19% - - - - - 19%

Independent non-executive ~ BUEHTEE
Directors

Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Note &) % &+ (Kfita) 6 - - - - - 6
M. Yip Chun On (Note b) %4 (Mikn) 3 - - - - - 38
Prof. Chau kwongWing Note )~ BEZ#R (%c) 30 - - - - - 0
M. YipKit Chau Victor (Note o)~ E7vM 44 (M3kd) % - - - - - %
Mr.IpSze Ching Ringo (Note )~ £+ (Mite) 5 - - - - - 5
1,140 4,398 521 1131 36 = 1232

Note a: Resigned on 17 July 2023 e RZZ==FtA+tHET

Note b: Resigned on 17 October 2023 b R=ZZ==F+A+tHET

Note ¢ Resigned on 17 January 2024 e R—Z-_mE—A+tHET

Note d:  Appointed on 17 July 2023 WEd R=ZFE==Ft A+ tRAEEE

Note e:  Appointed on 17 October 2023 and resigned on 1 December e RZT_=F+ AT tHEZERR=

2024 T_ME+— A —HEE
Note f:  Appointed on 17 January 2024 il R=Z-—mF—A++tABEE
Note g Appointed on 1 December 2024 Mg R=ZZ-_NF+-_A—BEZE
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REMBERRME

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

148

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments and retirement
benefits (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the
directors of the Company waived their emoluments nor
agreed to waive their emoluments for the year (2023: nil).
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 9(a), the directors did not
receive any other retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2023: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, there are no loans,
quasi loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
controlling bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023 nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those in Note 26, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which
directors of the Group had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: nil).
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9 EETIRERE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEMEREBARERN (2

REBEEZT-_NF+=-_A=+—HIE
FE BEARFEETHEXRAEN
BEMANFAHFH(ZZE_=F:|) -
RYBEEA  AEBEHERAEE
ARMEELNRBUEAIMAREE
SMA R ZEN S EABERAREE -

EERABARKLER

FRETES@PIMEEIN  EFLER
FARWEUE T E AR KRR A LR
M(ZE_=F:8]) -

ME=ZFTRAUERESREN
RE
REBEZEZT_NF+_A=+—HIE
FE BENESAEEEZRSM
MESENIREEIMNEMZREB(ZZ
T=FE ) o

FRNES HIXEZERBEE
ERASHEANER BUER
REAXZHNER

BRARE B ISR A S T B A S -
REBEE_ZT-_NF+_A=+—H01
FE OBENES HXEZEELES
HERBAXZANER BUERK
EMZGH(ZTEZ=F 1 #\) -

EENRE ZHEIEGHNEK
=

BREFFE26FTIRBEE AN - B AEE A
AT mMASEESEERESEERE
FRHAEEANGD BEEAEEERKS
BNEARS  THREHORFRER
BHE_ZT-_WF+-_A=1+—HLF
EEMEEEFEE(ZE_=F &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 B4R &R
2024
—E_NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Finance income BRI
— Bank interest income — RITFBHA 194 92
Finance costs B 5 B AN
— Interest expenses on borrowings — BT B 35,059 30,869
— Interest elements of lease liabilities —HEBENNESS 316 548
35,375 31,417
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FEHMAX
2024 2023
—EComE  —FT_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Current tax expense BIVEA 5 18 5 S
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBNER 4,225 4,996
Over provision in prior year BEFEBERE (59) (894)
Deferred income tax (Note 17) RIEFTISHL (BIEE17) 246 (337)
Income tax expense FriSfiAX 4,412 3,765
In accordance with the two-tiered profits tax regime, Hong REFMSHMAH B2 _NF+=
Kong profits tax was calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 A=1+—HLEHFE H2B8EBBTHHGE
million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of the estimated Rt N H2 8.25% st H BB NS - MERHR
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Bz 16.5%TE (ZZ2==4F : R -
same).
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FBHEAxX @
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from REBERBRETER AR MO IBEKAE
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong BAHERTEEEEANERSBEEAT
profits tax rate as follows: =H
2024 2023
ot~ 111 - —E =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 25 A& 7 23,296 25,933
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates RERBEFTENTIE 3,679 4,114
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ AJ #1754 57 52 430 367
Income not subject to taxation BERBIA (284) 379
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRDATEEENNBEZE
recognised 648 560
Qver provision in prior year BEFERERE (59) (894)
Tax concession MEER (2) @)
Income tax expense 8= 4,412 3,765
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 29.18, RIEIT 2918 A& & 5T R - ANEE
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of SR 425,212,000 T (Z T - =4 :
cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$25,212,000 (2023: 21,285,000 70) M) R 5T B IS B B R IR &
HK$21,285,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits HMEEE RAABTKAIEERKER
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the A A AR IR IS Rl A I R B BB A AR
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. THETIE ©
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
800,000,000 shares (2023: same) in issue during the year.

=8 MB B RME

12 BRER

(a) SREXRF
IR EARFITIEA R TG AR
35 2 34 4F PO 817 800,000,000 18 2 3
B (ZB==F : $8R) 2 METF B8
B -

Profit attributable to owners of
the Company (HK$)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

Basic and diluted earnings per share
(HK cents per share)

ARRHA AEEERN BT

BE#TE BB HEH

BREAREERN (BB

18,884,000 22,168,000
800,000,000 800,000,000
2.36 277

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share for the year is the same as
basic earnings per share as there was no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year (2023: same).

13 DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2024 of HK$1.67 cents per share, totaling of HK$13,360,000 has
been proposed for approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements have not reflected this
dividend payable.

(b) ERE#FRF
AEEHTRBERFRSRERE
FIABIR B A0 45 PO S 48 5 K AT 80
BERER (ZBZ=F 48R -

13 KR

BHE-_Z-_ME+_-_A=+—HILEEHN
KHERSE B A FI1.6778L - & ££13,360,000
B EEFERBERTHAREATAS
O o ZER B RR W ERRZEMNRE
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 #EWRRE
Leasehold office Motor
improvements Machinery equipment vehicles
HE%EE 1] WAERE RE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cost KA
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—H—H 14,108 3018 2,490 3,309 22,925
Additions for the year ERRE - - - 568 568
Disposal for the year FRHE - - - (40) (40)
At 31 December 2023 W-E-ZfF
+-RA=+-H 14,108 3,018 2,490 3,837 23,453
At 1 January 2024 RZE-_MF—F—H 14,108 3018 2,490 3,837 23,453
Additions for the year ENRE 3,225 - - - 3225
Disposal for the year ENHE - - - (583) (583)
At 31 December 2024 AZE-mE
+-RA=t—H 17,333 3,018 2,490 3,254 26,095
Accumulated 23t E
depreciation
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—Hf—H 14,108 3,014 1,278 3,185 21,585
Charge for the year FREY - 4 717 265 986
Disposal for the year FRHE - - - @ @)
At 31 December 2023 i S——
+=ZA=+—-H 14,108 3018 1,995 3,446 22,567
At 1 January 2024 RZZZNE—-HF—-H 14,108 3018 1,995 3,446 22,567
Charge for the year ENFZ 215 - 495 329 1,039
Disposal for the year ENHE - - - (535) (535)
At 31 December 2024 s
+-A=+-H 14,323 3,018 2,490 3,240 23,071
Carrying values REE
At 31December 2024 RZE-ME
+ZA=1+-8 3,010 - - 14 3,024
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%
+-A=1+-H - - 495 391 886
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no depreciation HE-_T-_WNF+-_A=+—HBILtFE "
(2023: HK$227,000) and HK$1,039,000 (2023: HK$759,000) were BMETE (T - =4 :227,0008T) &
charged to “cost of services” and “administrative expenses” in 1,039,000 7t (=& = = 4F : 759,000% 7T)
the statement of comprehensive income, respectively. DRREEWEEF MO REHAA] R 1T

2 | 0Bk -
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15 LEASES

(a)

(b)

Balances recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

=8 MB B RME

15 #HE
(@) RESHBERRRIEINSE

2024 2023
“EBENFE T =4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises MAEE 17,904 5,034
Directors’ quarter EFEESE 2,232 1,131
20,136 6,165

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current portion BN ERE6 5 3,815 6,136
Non-current portion JERNEREL & 17,153 213
20,968 6,349

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$20,976,000 (2023: HK$11,928,000).

Amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs) (Note 10)

BE-_T-_WF+-_A=+—HIF
SR E F A E E 420,976,000 7T
ZE =4 11,928,000/ 7T) °

(b) REE2EBERTEINEHE

EREEENESH

MEBEMN S H
(FEABBARA) (HFE10)

2024 2023
—ENEF —TE =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT
7,005 5,991
316 548

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2024 was approximately HK$6,673,000
(2023: approximately HK$6,364,000).

HE-_ZT_MNMF+_A=+—HLF
E-HEMBsARLBENE
6,673,000 T (Z T =Z=F : 4
6,364,000 7T) °
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15 LEASES (continued)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these

are accounted for

The Group leases 2 premises. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed period of 2 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
PUrposes.

The interest rate of each lease contracts is fixed at its
contract date, and the interest rates of all the lease
liabilities were 7.1% (2023: 5.8%) per annum as at 31
December 2024.

16 INVESTMENTS IN INSURANCE CONTRACTS

15 #HE #»)
() AEENHESIHREAESR

AEEBEE2@YME - HEANBR
B2 EE BRI - HEZ AR
EEETER  BEa8ETRAK
R - HEHZ TS HRY
5K - BHEEE TSR ARE A
AR

EHEAHNNFERNEGHBEHET
mMrEHEAER S _WF+—-A
—t+—HHEMNERTA (==
& 58%) o

16 REBENRE

2024
—E-NF
HK$'000
FTET
At the beginning of year REA 49,812 35,429
Addition for the year FARE 9,294 15,058
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ B4r& 2 @R R
comprehensive income:
— Changes in surrender values, — RREBEZEFEMT6)
net (Note 6) 283 (675)
At the end of year RER 59,389 49,812

Investments in insurance contracts represented key
management life insurance policies (the “Insurance
Policies”). The Group is the beneficiary of the Insurance
Policies. The Insurance Policies were pledged to the bank as
securities for certain facilities granted to the Group. Changes in
value of the investment in insurance contracts are recorded in
“Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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=8 MB B RME

17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 17 BEEFEHEE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EBAEARITRNDBENEHMEHEER
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets BEmERaERE AREMGHREE
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred MBEPRBR-—HERELERT L8
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by KT RERREREEERFEEEL
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or HRERERE AR BECHEMEE
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle B EG AEH -

the balances on a net basis.

The followings are the deferred income tax assets recognised NTRFANEBRAEEMSHEERA
and movements thereon during the year: FH

Decelerated
Provision depreciation Total
BiE R E #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHERT FERx

At 1 January 2023 WZEZ=F—HF—H 37 1,398 1,435

Credited/(debited) to consolidated s A/ (#1%:) 44

statements of comprehensive EHEER (FEE11)
income (Note 11) 493 (156) 337
At 31 December 2023 and A ——
1 January 2024 +—A=+—B8xX
—E-mF—HA—H 530 1,242 1,772

(Debited)/Credit to consolidated ~ (F1%) st A&GA& &2 E

statements of comprehensive Iz (3E11)
income (Note 11) (346) 100 (246)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-F
+—-HA=+—H 184 1,342 1,526
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 #ZHEBIEsMWEmMI A

HK$'000
THBT

Assets as per consolidated statement ZRAFBRREKEFINEE
of financial position

Financial assets subsequently measured ~— H#BIREHEA A EN S RMEE
at amortised cost

— Trade receivables (Note 19(a)) — B S EWEIE (K 19) 158,961 114,855
— Other receivables and deposits — HEM W RIE RIS
(excluding prepayments) (Note 19(b)) (TBIEFEMFZE)
(FF5E19(b)) 48,153 38,923
— Cash and cash equivalents and —RekReEEBWAK
pledged time deposits (Note 21) BT BfE R (B aE21) 65,049 45,518
Total et 272,163 199,296
Liabilities as per consolidated FEMBRRREINEAE
statement of financial position
Other financial liabilities subsequently Hg RS HEKATTEN
measured at amortised cost HtemaE
— Trade payables (Note 23) — B S EiTixmE (KE23) 171,044 75,689
— Accruals, retention payables and —EFTER  EAREeR
other liabilities excluding EmaE(TeEEemas)
non-financial liabilities (Note 23) (MF5E23) 113,997 98,548
— Borrowings (Note 24) — &k (f5E24) 477,712 437,992
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —HEaE (MiE15) 20,968 6,349
783,721 618,578
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 EZRHEHMEWRIE
(a) Trade receivables (@) EFZREWMIE

2024 2023

—EBEDNFE T =4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables B 5 WA 158,988 117,899

Less: provision for impairment W RmERE (HFE3.1a)

(Note 3.1(a)) (27) (3,044)

Trade receivables, net B 5 W IR F 158,961 114,855
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the ageing analysis of RZEBZNFR_ZFEZ=F+=H
the trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows: =+—H - BSEWKIBEERAHH

HEREDITAT -

2024 2023

—E-NE —E =

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

1t0 30 days 1230H 88,218 82,301

31-60 days 31260H 56,060 10,104

61-90 days 61290H 7,413 11,288

Over 90 days 0B M 7,297 14,206

158,988 117,899
Trade receivables are due from 30 days to 90 days after BORWHIERAAEERIOAZE0
invoicing depending on the nature of services. The HREH RERBEEEME - A%

Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated in BEHNE S RBGRIBEEENB LA

Hong Kong Dollars.
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continvea) 19 B Z R H it EWFIE &)

(b) Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (b) HttEWRE  RERFEMNRE
2024
—E-NFE
HK$°000
TET
Prepayments for fitting-out works RiETRBNFHE 84,870 97,066
Prepayments for insurance RERTER B 1,381 1,540
Deposits (Note) e (MisE) 46,637 37,127
Advances to employees B2XTEE 1,516 1,796
134,404 137,529
Less: Non-current portion B FERNERER (43,634) (35,822)
Current portion BNERER 75 90,770 101,707
Note: Deposits represent surety bonds purchased from insurance T : HeEMRBARBENENRE M
companies, rental and utility deposits. They are expected to be ERKERS ZERBEHGRIFAE
released in accordance with the term of the respective contracts. A HEIEFGRE -
The Group's other receivables and deposits are mainly AEEMEMERFIBRIZEETEN
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. None of the other BITEHE - S EE M ESGIE RiRE
receivables and deposits was impaired. BEAERE °
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables B REMBRFENEDEEELR
approximate to their fair values. The maximum exposure FEEE NERERERAEZD
to credit risk at the end of each reporting period is ZAEERRALASEES NEM
carrying amount of each class of trade and other FEMGRIEH R B ©

receivables mentioned above.
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20 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

Included in contract assets/(liabilities) are the following:

=8 MB B RME

20 EHNEERGNER

IWTEAGHEE(BfE)

contract assets EREE

Unbilled revenue FABEWR 534,093 429,064

Retention receivables (Note) EURE & (M) 89,294 84,809
623,387 513,873

Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (1,090) (170)

Contract assets, net ERNEERE 622,297 513,703

Contract liabilities EHEaE (53,159) (35,172)

Note: Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the terms of the
respective contracts. The terms and conditions in relation to the release
of retention vary from contract to contract, which is subject to practical
completion, the expiry of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time
period. In the consolidated statement of financial position, retention
receivables were classified as current assets based on operating cycle.

The settlement analysis of these retention receivables based
on the terms of related contracts was as follows:

MIAE - BRBE S TVIRIFERA O RREN - EHUR
BEMERALGHERTRAGOMEMER - A
FEERT  REEEHSRBELEOENDHEE /ﬁ
BABEW - BPERBEREAFBRRRAE

BEHEBANFHEADNZSTRERESH
BRI -

2024 2023

—EDWFE C—E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within one year —F R 65,726 57,449
Between one to two years —EME 23,568 27,360
89,294 84,809

The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk
characters as trade receivables. The impairment of contract
assets is disclosed in Note 3.1(a)(ii). As at 31 December 2024,
the provision for impairment of contract assets is
approximately HK$920,000 (2023: HK$88,000).

AEEBEHANEERESRERKRFELRSR
R - & L& ERBERKTEE3.1)i)
FE-R-_E-_WMF+_A=+—8"
AHMEEMNREREELN E920,000% T
(ZZE =4 :88,000/87T) °
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

FA

2024 2023

—EBDNFE T =4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET T

Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 57,862 42,391
Pledged time deposits (Note) B A E BE R () 7,187 3,127
65,049 45,518

Note: Restricted deposits are funds which are pledged as security for the
banking facilities of the Group. Interest rates of restricted deposits are
approximately 0.001% (2023: same) per annum.

The Group's cash and bank balances and pledged time
deposits are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
United Stated dollars ETT

s RREFEFESEMERARBMRTARENER
R FRE © ZIRBIFE R FFEBK0.001% (=
To=F R -

AEENRE RBITEBIDEREYRE
REBUTIEREFE :

2023
—E=F

HK$'000
TAET

65,031 45,505
18 13

65,049 45,518
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 AR
Number of
ordinary Share
shares Capital
ZEREE &N
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT
Authorised: EIE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024 RZE-=ZFK
—ZE-pFE+—-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHRE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024 NZEBE_=FF
—E_NMFE+_/F=+—H 800,000,000 8,000
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EFRHMENRE
2024
—E-NE
HK$°000
TET
Tradepayables  HPpEgyH 171044 75,689
Accruals, retention payables and BETER - ERNRBeREAMEE:
other liabilities:
Retention payables (Note) B RE e (M) 84,293 71,622
Accrued employee benefits expenses EEHEE RN 8,806 14,718
Other accruals and payables Hih st & A R ENHRIE 4,704 2,628
Deposits from subcontractors KEDBEENIES 25,000 25,000
122,803 113,968
Less: Non-current portion R JERNEREE (809) -
... 121,994 113,968
293,038 189,657
Note: The terms and conditions in relation to the release of retention vary from Misk s FRERBEHBARGKHERETRS K MmA T
contract to contract. In the consolidated statement of financial position, Z8 - BARBEREEHBRARANREEE
retention payables were classified as current liabilities based on operating HoEARAERE - RABSHOFHE S NEN
cycle. The settlement date of the retention payables based on terms of REBESWMESBBHDOT -

related contracts is as follows:

The trade and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong B RNEMEBNREETZUNETFE M
Kong Dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair EEHEEEQAFEREE -
values.

162 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & £ @R E R A 7



23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

23

ESREMESRE®)
Z SN R EERE BRI

follows:

2024 2023
ZEIMFE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
1-30 days 1230H 125,273 20,688
31-60 days 31260H 19,891 18,540
61-90 days 61£290H 8,168 12,306
Over 90 days 90 H A I 17,712 24,155
171,044 75,689
2024 2023
—EBoNFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Will be paid within twelve months R+ 8 A AT 72,627 55,024

Will be paid more than twelve months BRFEREBB T —EA ST
after the end of the year 11,666 16,598
84,293 71,622
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24 BORROWINGS

164

Current, secured

BIH - 2
— RITER (MisEakb)

— Bank borrowings (Notes a and b)

24 fa K

437,992

The bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates that are
market dependent.

@)

The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end to the contractual
maturity date without taking into consideration the effect
of repayment on demand clause.

RITERID RIS EEM

R E B FIE

TR

@)

TRUFIAEERNFRBTHNES
SEE LR RV P
ERA I - B2 AT R
BEROTE

F“a_u

Bank borrowings repayable: JE(EERIRITE R :
Within one year —FR 466,092 428,357
More than one year but not —FEERFR
exceeding two years 2,807 2,691
More than two years but not MEL EEBRFR
exceeding five years 8,199 4,433
More than five years RAFEMRE 314 2,511
477,412 437,992
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group REBE-ZE-_NF+-A=1+—HIE
obtained new bank borrowings of approximately FE - AEBEERSE %ﬁz_fﬁfﬂa%\%’\]

HK$1,424,526,000 (2023: HK$1,447,915,000) and repaid
bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,385,106,000
(2023: HK$1,423,082,000).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate
their fair values. The weighted average interest rates are
7.1% per annum as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 7.0% per
annum).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7]

1,424,526,0008 0 (ZE = = F :
1,447,915,00078 7T) * R EERITE
FK#91,385,106,000 8 T (ZE == :
1,423,082,00058 7T) °

{%TAE’JEEE{E HAFEMESE -RZ

“MEFTZ HE+ B bt
E?‘F'JTZ%N% —EREC=FFMNEX
#27.0%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 B &)
(b) As at 31 December 2024, borrowings of the Group are b RZZ2EZmOF+—A=+—H K&
secured/guaranteed by: E (8RB LA TS BT, ER
()  Personal guarantee provided by Mr. Ng; iy MBREERENEAER:
@iy  Corporate guarantees provided by the Company; (il BARAREHATER
(i) Properties held by two directors and the related (i) AMBEEREHBARFTED
companies; S E
(iv) Investments in insurance contracts and pledged (iv) AIRTHIESR TRITHRENEK
time deposit of approximately HK$59,389,000 (2023: 1 & 8 5 Bl 49 59,389,000 7% JT
HK$49,812,000) and HK$7,187,000 (2023: Z T = =4 149,812,000 JT)
HK$3,127,000) were held at bank as security for §7,187,0008 L (ZE = =4 :
certain banking facilities respectively. 3,127,000 L) MR & K&
REeBEREEFER -
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBHRZIERBRENT
2024
—E_NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Floating rate TEB) A 42,085 60,308
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are mainly EBERNEEEEZZN T EEE :

denominated in the following currencies.

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET

HK$ BT 477,412 437,992
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 25 GEHEREXRKE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (@) BRAIEHANEFEEEE,(FTA)
generated from/(used in) operations: I8 & ¥R -
2024
—E-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Profit before income tax bR P15 0 A5 23,296 25,933
Adjustments for: AT HIBFEE -
Interest income (Note 10) FEWA (H5E10) (194) (92)
Interest expenses (Note 10) B (MFE10) 35,375 31,417
(Gain)/losses on changes in surrender R & IR ENRREEZFSHH

values of investments in insurance (Uezs), 518 58 (Kisx6)

contracts, net (Note 6) (283) 675
Depreciation of plant and equipment — ##% & R &I E (H:E14)

(Note 14) 1,039 986
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FAEEENE (M3E15)

(Note 15) 7,005 5,991
Impairment loss on trade receivables B ZEBHEBEREHNEERE

and contract assets, net B8 E 58 (MY =% 3.1(a)()

(Note 3.1(a)ii) 769 2,990
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 1 £ # 4 K 3% 5 80 & 18 48 -~
Provision of long service payments KA AR TS B BB 107 702
Changes in working capital EEECED
Trade receivables B 5 WA (43,955) 69,734
Other receivables, deposits and H bW RIE « e NIENFIE

prepayments 3,125 (37,707)
Contract assets BHEE (109,514) (94,000)
Contract liabilities GHEE 17,987 (7,795)
Trade payables B 5 A 95,355 22,983
Accruals, retention payables and BEER  BENREBER

other liabilities HEtBE 8,728 4,104
Cash generated from operations KEMBAS 38,888 25,921

166 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & £ @R E R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation
The following table provides a reconciliation for the
movements of net debt arising from financing activities
during financial year 2023 and 2024.

25

=8 MB B RME

HERERERMTE ®

(b) FEKHE
TEHIWR - BE-=—FER =T -FE
MHREFERERHEENFELE D
$0R -

Liabilities from financing activities

RERDELNERE
Cashand  Pledged
cash time Lease Interest
equivalents  deposits Borrowings liabilites  payable Total
AeR BHEA
BEE@EY EHER fam  HERE EFFE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHL FAET FET TER

As at 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—F—H 50,463 3,127 (413,159) (237) - (359,806)
Cash flows: HenE: (8,072) - - - - (8,072)
Drawdown of borrowings REER - - (1,447915) - - (1,447.915)
Repayment of borrowings B ER - - 1423082 - - 1423082
Repayment of lease liabilities EEFREEE - - - 5816 - 52816
Interest paid ERFE - - - - 31,417 31,417
Non-cash movements: FReH
Addition of lease liabilties ~ #MEHEEE - - - (11,928) - (11,928)
Interest expense MERZ - - - - (31,417) (31,417)
Net cash as at RZZZ=F1+=A

31 December 2023 ST-HNRLFE 42,391 3127 (437992 (6,349) - (398,829)
As at 1 January 2024 RZE-_MF—F—H 42,391 3,127 (437,992) (6,349) - (398,823)
Cash flows: Beme 15,471 - - - - 15,471
Drawdown of borrowings ~ $2ERfE 3k - - (1,424,526) - - (1,424,526)
Repaymentof borrowings ~ BEBER - - 1,385,106 - - 1,385,106
Repayment of lease liabilties EEHEEE - - - 6,357 - 6,357
Interest paid ERFE - - - - 35,375 35,375
Increase in pledged BERRIEREM

bank deposits - 4,060 - - - 4,060
Non-cash movements: FREEE:
Addition of lease liabilites ~ #EHEAEE - - - (20976) - (20,976)
Interest expense MERT - - - - (35,375) (35,375
Net cash as at R-ZZ_ME+_AR

31 December 2024 S+-RNBLFE 57,862 7187 (477,412)  (20,968) - (433331)
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26

168

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, has joint control
over the party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operation decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties in the
ordinary course of business and balances arising from related
party transactions as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the financial years.

26 BHAE RS

W—HAENEEIEEEHNS—F

RS — e H S — Hﬁéf’ﬁﬂjﬂﬁi‘“&%&s
REREHBMERNZE - A€ 5 HEER 5B
T oo & RS IR AR o

MTAAEEEARBB I EREEFBE
FETHNEARS  UAERR T -_MFR
TR+ A=t -HEBRAIRSE
EREHRTE -

(a) AEERFHREERNLABEH HTNEKR
ZTHWTE o

Lease payments paid to directors MAARES S NNHEERE

of the Company 600 600
Lease payments paid to a MR A B A ERIE

related company 600 600

Note: These transactions were conducted in the normal course of
business at prices and terms mutually agreed among the parties.

(b) Balances with related parties
In relation to the leased properties from a director (2023:
same) and a related company, the corresponding rental
deposits paid by the Group as at 31 December 2024 are
HK$200,000 (2023: HK$200,000).

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2023:
same) and a related company, no corresponding lease
liabilities was payable to a director (2023: same) and a
related company as at 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2023:
same) and a related company, no corresponding
remaining balances of right-of-use assets acquired from
a director (2023: same) and a related company as at 31
December 2024 (2023: nil).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7]

M RERXZTDRET KR HENBER &G
HREBEBBIZPAET -

(b) EREBEETS WAEER
HRKE—BEF(ZZE_=F: EHRA)
R—HEBARNEEMENS -~
SER_ZT_HWFE+_-_A=+—HE
X589 48 FE A B 32 © /200,000 7T
ZZT =4 :200,000%7T) °

HRKE—BEF(ZZT_=F: EHRA)
R—HEBARNEEMERS N
—ERoME+ A=t BEREN
EX (T =% HR) KA LA
MEERERE (T _=F &) -

HRKE—BEF(ZZTE_=F: EHRA)
R—HEBARNEEMERS RN
—EROME+ A=t BMERE
F(ZF=F MR kBB AR
BRERREEMESRRE (=
FE) -
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 26 BHBAF RS ()

(c) Banking facilities/Guarantees (c) SRITME ER
The Group's banking facilities, surety bonds and office REEMRITHE BAORIBRIFA
rental agreement were secured by properties, corporate =HEHZHBAR T RRREL
and personal guarantees given by related parties/ TEE - 2E) REAEREERER:

companies as below:

Name of related parties/companies Relationship with the Group
) DN L = EA 7R 5= @ Y BA 4R
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu Director and the ultimate controlling party
REHEE EEREEERT
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Director and spouse of the ultimate controlling party
e LT B RRAES T HBLE
Success Land Global Group Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
RITEZARATA] F R % A L EE
Fullmax Resources Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
BERERLT F R %t A AT
Nice Dragon International Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
R AR A A] AR S A HEES
One Studio Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
RELLEBR A A B R 5T A S A
Sky Range Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
Sky Range Limited RS A HEEES
(d) Key management compensation (d) =ZEEABRMH
The directors consider the key management personnel to EERBTEEBAERFIEEES
be the members of the Board of Directors of the Group gKE BEFE - BERIESASE
who have responsibilities for planning, directing and B H)ESB) o BRI L9 R EE -

controlling the activities of the Group. Their
compensations are disclosed in Note 9.

27 CONTINGENCIES 27 HAEBIE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's contingent RZE_NFR T -_=F+-_A=+—
liabilities were as follow: H:  AEEMKABELT
2024 2023
—E_NUFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Surety bonds (Note) BAIREE (BT 3E) 126,423 93,225
Note: As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided corporate guarantee (2023: st RZZZMFE+—A=+—H RAKERE—
same) of surety bonds in respect of 13 (2023: 10) fitting-out contracts of REEBRFNIBN(ZTE_=F:107) £E&
the Group in its ordinary course of business respectively. The surety BHNBHORE AEEREQRER(ZS
bonds are expected to be released in accordance with the term of the Z=F: R -BAREFFEDEIZBEBEEE
respective fitting-out contracts. BRI F R IR o
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28 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28 AR TRIBMBRREREFEESE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company RQ BB AR R FR
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—8H
2024 2023
—B-MmE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note a) R E A AR A (Mzta) 151,752 151,752
_ Deposits B I 1,428
o Mgs2 153,180
Current assets REBEE
Deposits oA 1,428 -
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Wy — FEI BT B A B3R E 73,126 74,996
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFED 268 251
e 74822 75,247
Total assets BmEE 226,574 228,427
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkBE
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEAELER
the Company
Share capital (Note 22) A&7 (B 5 22) 8,000 8,000
Reserves (Note b) @ (M3Eb) 199,064 201,011
Totalequity = #ER& 00000 207,064 209011
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H b~ 3008 351 256
Bank borrowings RITER 18,000 18,000
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT— Y B A 5k IE 1,159 1,159
_Total liabilites ~~~~ #&& 19510 . 19,415
Total equity and liabilities ExkBEHAHE 226,574 228,426
The statement of financial position of the Company was ARG N E L EEeR —E—HE

approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and was

signed on its behalf. SAZTERE TRARE -

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe
REBRE i=W;SE Ok odun
Director Director
EE2 EFFE
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28 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28 EAATBMBERRARREEEES &)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: B 5 -
(@) Particulars of principal subsidiaries (@) FEWBARFE
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Principal activities and
Company hame establishment fully paid up place of operation Interest held (%)
DRER MR LB BRTRBEREST IEEBREEHE P 455 R (%)
2024 2023
—E-MF —TZ=F
Directly held by the Company
AAREERES
Team World Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 Investment holding, Hong Kong 100 100
Team World Company Limited RE#BRES 1%L RERR &S

Indirectly held by the Company

AT MEEES
Success Base Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 Provision of fitting-out services 100 100
and repair and maintenance
services to residential and
commercial properties, Hong
Kong
BIETRRERAR B 2,500,000 7T RETREEVEREEE
RS A R 18 AR IR T -
=8
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AADTEEES
Capital
Share reserve Accumulated
premium (Note) losses Total
EARGEE
B3R E (B &) Rt g8 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I FHET FBT FAT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-_=F—H—H 86,006 151,752 (33,356) 204,402
Loss for the year FREIE - - (3,391) (3,391)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZTE-_=%+=A
=+t—8k
—ZE-MNF—A—H 86,006 151,752 (36,747) 201,011
Loss for the year FREE = = (1,947) (1,947)
At 31 December 2024 RZZTZWF
+=—A=+—8 86,006 151,752 (38,694) 199,064
Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the Wizt : BARGHEIEER R A A HFEHE AN KM
group companies and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity BARKRERZRE AEEHETKEZ Y HE
holders of subsidiaries upon completion of reorganisation. ANRIMH AR -
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29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

29.1 Subsidiaries
29.1.1 Consolidation

172

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

29.1.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Group on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.2 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chairman of the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

29.3 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or l0ss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gains/(losses), net.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

174

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

29.4 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of lease
term or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Machinery 3years
Office equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 5years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.4

29.5

29.6

Plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and depreciation rates are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
29.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as at
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are

() The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows; and

(i) The contractual terms give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.6 Financial assets (continued)

176

(@

(b)

(c)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Classification (continued)

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. The Group
reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing the assets
changes.

If collection of the amounts is expected in one year
or less they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group's financial assets comprise trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and pledged time deposits.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.6 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or 10ss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and presented
in “other gains/(losses), net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that their credit risks have
not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the 12-month
expected credit losses (Note 3.1(a)(ii)).
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.6 Financial assets (continued)

178

(e)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial assets, if the
part being considered for derecognition meets one
of the following conditions: (i) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expire; or (i) the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial asset have been
transferred, and the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or (iii) the Group retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the
financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual
recipient in an agreement that meets all the
conditions of de-recognition of transfer of cash
flows (“pass through” requirements) and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income:

. the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred; and

o the sum of the consideration received from
the transfer and any cumulative gain or 10ss
that has been recognised directly in equity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.7 Financial liabilities

(@

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities at
amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such as exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

180

29.8

29.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements at the end of each reporting period.

Investments in insurance contracts

The Group acquired management life insurance
contracts, which include both investment and insurance
elements. The investment insurance contracts are initially
recognised at the amount of the premium paid and
subsequently carried at the amount that could be
realised under the insurance contract (cash surrender
value) at the end of each reporting period, with changes
in value recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

29.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables are expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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fReMBERERME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 29 HBEEAXSTHERE &)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities VNENEEREBHNERS

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration from customers in exchange for the
provision of fitting-out services that the Group has
transferred to the customers that is not yet
unconditional. Contract assets arise when the Group has
provided the fitting-out services under the relevant
contracts but the works have yet to be certified by
architects, quantity surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers and/or the Group'’s right to
payment is still conditional on factors other than passage
of time. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
when the Group’s right to payment becomes
unconditional other than passage of time.

In accordance with the terms of the contracts entered
into with customers, the Group are required to submit to
customers’ payment applications for the value of work
done under the contracts along with any variation orders
performed. Customers will settle normally in 30-90 days
after invoicing depending on the nature of services.
Customers usually retain an amount up to 10% of the
value of work done, subject to a maximum limit of 5% of
the original contract sum as retention money for the
contract. The terms and conditions in relation to the
release of retention vary from contract to contract, which
is subject to practical completion, the expiry of the defect
liability period and the discussion of final accounts.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer the aforesaid services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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29

182

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and bank deposits with
financial institutions with original maturities of three
months or less.

29.13 Pledged time deposits
Pledged time deposits represent fixed deposits pledged
to the banks for issuance of bank facilities and bank
borrowings. Such pledged time deposits can be released
when the Group repays the bank borrowings or
withdrawn at any time if other qualified securities are
placed as alternative.

29.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

29.15 Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Trade payables are obligations to pay for materials or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables, other
payables and accruals are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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fReMBERERME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 29 HBEEAXSTHERE &)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
29.16 Borrowings 29.16 6 &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

29.17 Borrowing costs

General borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
year in which they are incurred.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.18 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year's taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

184

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the consolidated statement
of financial position in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

29.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the historical financial information. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29.21 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
both the employer and employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
(capped at HK$30,000). Contributions from the
employer equivalent to the contribution as
specified at the rules of the MPF Scheme are 100%
vested as soon as they are paid to the relevant MPF
Scheme but all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until
the employee reaches the age of 65, subject to a
few exceptions.

The contributions to the MPF Scheme is not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the fund prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contribution has been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Group’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the date of consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
29.22 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the other (losses)/gains on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

29.23 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised within “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

A government grant relating to the purchase of plant and
equipment for the cost of an office equipment is
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the assets by way of reduced
depreciation expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.24 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

29.25 Leases

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
shares held for employee share scheme.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessee with
respect to certain premises.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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REMBERRME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.25 Leases (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

190

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

ease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received,

any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs, if any.
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fReMBERERME

29 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 29 HBEEAXSTHERE &)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

29.25 Leases (continued) 29.25 & (&)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices and accounts
for separately.

Some of the property leases include extension options.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The Group considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option in determining the lease
term. The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment.

29.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’'s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or
directors.
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Financial Summary

MEBER

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for AEBEGEE REGREENZEEULEERER
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited 2 (faéx 5 B FIB KB ZE S M B HRK) 57
consolidated financial statements, is set out below. This financial ~ ZAF o AR E W TN EREER G A RERE
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial ~ #—Z8%

statements.

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—BoNE —T-=f —T--F —T--— ZT-FTEF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THBT FTAET THET FTAET

Revenue Yezs 902,316 1,008,101 819,302 798,108 680,212
Gross profit EH 120,939 129,565 114,023 102,298 93,197
Profit before income tax expense % P {57 B9 s A1 i A 23,296 25,933 32,854 16,360 20,399

Profit and total comprehensive  RA BB AEIHER
income for the year attributable &I &% 2 B Wzt 2%
to owners of the Company 18,884 22,168 28,065 12,597 18,049

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-—-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—E-NE —TE--f —E-— —E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FET FHET

Total assets BEE 1,065,422 870,322 799,126 648,814 514,000
Total liabilities maffd 845,386 669,170 620,142 497,895 376,208
Net assets BEFE 220,036 201,152 178,984 150,919 137,792
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